
Please note:  Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through sign language interpreters or other auxiliary aides.

NOTICE

Milwaukee County
Federated Library System

Board of Trustees

Monday, January 6th, 2019

3:30 P.M.

This meeting will be conducted in a
meeting room of the

Milwaukee County Federated Library System
709 N. 8th Street

Milwaukee, WI 53233

AGENDA

1. Call to order

2. Adoption of agenda

3. Approval of minutes: the MCFLS Board of Trustees meeting on Monday, October 21st,
2019

Action Attachment A

4. Public comment

5. Library Directors Advisory Council--Report of the November and December Meetings
Attachment B



Board of Trustees—Administrative reports requiring action

6. Financial Reports—October and November 2019
Action Attachment C

7. 2020 MCFLS Board Proposed Meeting Dates
Action Attachment D

8. 2020 MCFLS Officers
Action

9. 2020 Lease Agreement
Action Attachment E

10. 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology and Resource Sharing Plan
Action Attachment F

11. Marketing and Advocacy Committee guidelines
Action Attachment G

12. Resolution for Director Heser recognizing 15 years at MCFLS
Action Attachment H

Administrative Informational Items

13. Update on status of IRST agreements. Letter from the Cudahy Family Library Board
regarding the 2020-2024 IRST agreement

Attachment I

14. Letter from State Superintendent Taylor approving the MCFLS 2020 annual system
plan and confirming transmittal of the first of two system aid payments for 2020

Attachment J

15. Director’s Report
Attachment K

Next meeting date (proposed): January 27th, 3:30 p.m., MCFLS Conference Room.

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 2 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 2 of 59



Milwaukee County Federated Library System
Board of Trustees

Regular Monthly Meeting held Monday, October 21, 2019
Brown Deer Public Library
5600 West Bradley Road
Brown Deer, WI  53223

ROLL CALL:

Present: Paul Ziehler, President
Nik Kovac, Treasurer
Guy Johnson, Trustee
Steven Shea, Trustee
Elizabeth Suelzer, Trustee

Excused: Paula Penebaker, Vice President
Kurt Glaisner, Trustee

Staff: Steve Heser, Director
Judy Kaniasty, Business Manager
Jen Schmidt, Library Systems Administrator

Others: Susan Draeger-Anderson, LDAC Chair and North Shore Library
Paula Kiely, Milwaukee Public Library
Judy Pinger, Milwaukee Public Library

CALL TO ORDER.  President Ziehler called the regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the Milwaukee
County Federated Library System Board of Trustees to order at 3:45 p.m.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA. President Ziehler referred to the agenda.  Trustee Johnson moved and
Treasurer Kovac seconded a motion to adopt the agenda as distributed.  Unanimously approved.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES. President Ziehler referred to the minutes of the Monday, September 30, 2019
meeting which are shown as Attachment A of the agenda packet.  Treasurer Kovac moved and Trustee
Johnson seconded a motion to approve the minutes as presented.  Unanimously approved.

PUBLIC COMMENT. None.

LIBRARY DIRECTORS ADVISORY COUNCIL. President Ziehler referred to the LDAC report of the October
3, 2019 meeting which was distributed at the meeting and shown as Exhibit 1 attached to these
minutes.

[Trustee Shea arrived at 3:50 p.m.]

ATT A - MCFLS Board Minutes 2019-10
1 of 8

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 3 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 3 of 59



LDAC Chair Susan Draeger-Anderson reviewed her report and responded to questions from the Board.
Trustee Johnson moved and Trustee Shea seconded a motion to accept the report and place it on file.
Unanimously approved.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES – ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS REQUIRING ACTION.

Financial Report – September, 2019. President Ziehler referred to the September, 2019 financial report
which was distributed at the meeting and shown as Exhibit 2 attached to these minutes.  Director Heser
reviewed the report, noting that more interest is being earned than anticipated; it was noted that the
funds are invested with Milwaukee County with all of their investments in the local government
investment pool.  Treasurer Kovac moved and Trustee Shea seconded a motion to approve the report as
presented.  Unanimously approved.

2020 MCFLS Budget. President Ziehler referred to the proposed 2020 MCFLS Budget which is shown as
Attachment B of the agenda packet. Director Heser reviewed the document and responded to
questions.  It was suggested that the financial report indicate related revenue and expenditures by
putting the line numbers in parenthesis next to line items for easier cross-referencing.  President Ziehler
asked if all strategic plan issues are addressed and Director Heser confirmed that fact.  The staff COLA is
slated to be 2% increase.  Trustee Johnson moved and Treasurer Kovac seconded a motion to approve
the proposed 2020 MCFLS budget as presented.  Unanimously approved.

Trustee Suelzer questioned what were to happen if a member library does not sign the member
agreement after the 2020 budget has been approved and President Ziehler replied that the agreement
could be opened and revised as well as the budget modified if necessary.

2020 West Milwaukee Charges. President Ziehler referred to the customary 2020 West Milwaukee
charges which are shown as Attachment C of the agenda packet. Director Heser noted that the invoice
for $96,545 will be sent in January and that the amount is down from last year’s amount of $102,793
due primarily to less circulation of materials to West Milwaukee residents. The time frame used for the
calculation is the same as the reciprocal borrowing year used for those payments. Treasurer Kovac
moved and Trustee Shea seconded a motion to approve the 2020 West Milwaukee calculated charges as
presented.  Unanimously approved.

2020 Delivery Contract. President Ziehler referred to the 2020 delivery contract with Action Logistics
which is shown as Attachment D of the agenda packet. Director Heser reported that this is an extension
of the current contract with everything the same with no price increase and this is the eleventh year of
the same terms.  The only change is related to price of gasoline which fluctuates.  Trustee Suelzer moved
and Trustee Johnson seconded a motion to approve the 2020 delivery contract with Action Logistics as
presented.  Unanimously approved.

2020 SEWI Continuing Education Contract. President Ziehler referred to the 2020 SEWI Continuing
Education Contract which is shown as Attachment E of the agenda packet. Director Heser noted that
MCFLS is part of the group of library systems in southeastern Wisconsin that collaborate on training for
staff which is coordinated by the Bridges Library System.  MCFLS does participate in the planning of
sessions planned and many formats of training is provided.  Trustee Shea moved and Trustee Johnson
seconded a motion to approve the 2020 SEWI Continuing Education Contract as presented at a cost of
$6,474 which is $30 more than the 2019 cost.  Unanimously approved.

ATT A - MCFLS Board Minutes 2019-10
2 of 8

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 4 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 4 of 59



ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

Response to the Greenfield Public Library Board. President Ziehler referred to Attachment F of the
agenda packet which Director Heser drafted for him to sign and which he authorized Director Heser to
send off in a timely manner before this meeting after receiving a letter at last month’s MCFLS Board
meeting.  Director Heser reported that Sheila O’Brien, Greenfield Public Library Director did thank
MCFLS for the response to their letter.

Marketing and Advocacy Committee Draft Guidelines. President Ziehler referred to Attachment G of the
agenda packet. Director Heser reviewed the Marketing and Advocacy Committee draft guidelines which
were developed by a working group of Trustee Glaisner, Director Heser, Rachel Collins (Library Director)
and Emily Vieyra (Assistant Library Director) of Shorewood Public Library and Pete Loeffel (Library
Director) of the Wauwatosa Public Library.  Director Heser requested permission from the MCFLS Board
to move forward with reaching out to representatives to serve in the six designated categories listed
under C of the guidelines noting that the members of the guidelines development working group would
be allowable to fill a position of the Committee.  After approval of the Guidelines, the LDAC will also
review the guidelines and a final version of the guidelines will come back to the MCFLS Board at a future
meeting for final approval.  It was noted that hiring of any marketing consultant or contract worker
would be the sole responsibility of MCFLS.  The 2020 budget will be $40,500 for staffing and $10,000 for
various marketing methods.  Trustee Johnson questioned whether evaluation measures were discussed
and he recommends looking at the whole project when doing so.

2020 Meeting Dates Discussion. President Ziehler noted that he would like to set a standard week of
the month to hold MCFLS board meetings in 2020 and suggested the fourth Monday at 3:30; there was
nobody that disagreed with that idea and therefore Director Heser will put together a list of proposed
2020 MCFLS Board meeting dates and bring them forward for action at the next meeting.

Director’s Report. President Ziehler referred to the Director’s Report which is shown as Attachment H of
the agenda packet. Director Heser reviewed his report and noted that Greendale, North Shore and
Shorewood have signed the ILS, Resource Sharing and Technology Agreement to date and he has heard
that a few more member library board meetings will be held soon to consider the agreement. Progress
is being made on the new mobile app and more information will be shared after discussing that further
tomorrow with the Communico vendor.

President Ziehler reported that he had attended the County Budget Hearing and he did not notice any
immediate move to provide more than the $66,650 which has been the amount for the past good
number of years.

NEXT MEETING. Scheduled for Monday, December 16, 2019 beginning at 3:30 p.m. in the MCFLS
Conference Room.

ADJOURNMENT. With no further business to be addressed, Trustee Shea moved and Trustee Suelzer
seconded a motion to adjourn the meeting at 4:40 p.m.  Unanimously approved.

ATT A - MCFLS Board Minutes 2019-10
3 of 8

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 5 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 5 of 59



October 21, 2019

To:  MCFLS Board of Trustees
From:  Susan Draeger-Anderson
North Shore Library
Summary of LDAC Meeting 10/03/2019
Location:  Whitefish Bay Public Library

LAWDS Project Overview (Libraries Activating Workforce Development Skills)
Heather Nilsen and Ted Anderson, two from the Department of Workforce Development and Julie
Cayo from Employ Milwaukee provided an overview of this project.   They discussed what their
organizations do, how libraries can work with them and upcoming training opportunities.  This
program is part of a 3 year grant.  The first year involved planning and years two and three involve
implementation.  Directors were excited to be able to offer these resources to patron in need of this
help.

Young Adult Services Committee Presentation of 2019-2020 Program Schedule
Kelly Wochinske reviewed the proposed agenda.  She shared that the new MKE Mixer boxes will be
shared at the October meeting.

MKE Mixers – Presentation of the 2019-2020 Activities
Jess Norris reviewed this group’s agenda and shared that four new boxes have been developed (art,
build, kitchen and coding).  She reported that some new committee members have been added and
that a Facebook pages has been created to post photos and share program ideas.  Jen Schmidt
reported that a digitization kit will be added by the end of the year, including a VHS to DVD and a slide
converter.  Jess shared that the most popular box is the button maker.  Boxes circulate for 1-3 weeks.
Jess Norris noted that the committee can always use more members and encouraged Directors to
speak to staff about getting involved.

CountyCat Mobile Update
Jen Schmidt reported that the old app’s subscription ends on October 24th.  The new app is now in
testing mode with a release date that has not yet been determined.  There is an issue with the old app
for I-phone users who have updated to IOS-13 - no search box appears.  There was discussion on how
to best inform mobile app users of the upcoming change.  Email was discussed.  Some thought there
might be privacy concerns with this.

Discussion:  Change to allow holds on magazines
Steve Heser provided information on magazine circulation at each library YTD.  Jen Schmidt reported
that the Circulation Services group does not recommend making magazines holdable due to possible
damage in delivery and because they are not RFID tagged.  They felt this would cause more work at the

ATT A - MCFLS Board Minutes 2019-10
4 of 8

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 6 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 6 of 59



desk to tag on the fly.  Nyama Reed reported that both Monarch and Waukesha systems circulate them
through the system and use yellow envelopes with barcodes on them.  Although this initiative provided
a potential for increased circulation, it was decided not to make magazines holdable.

Discussion: System-wide access for teacher cards and fee cards
This item was brought forward by Steve Heser.  A teacher new to the area had expressed surprise that
her teacher card, limited her to items at her library of registration only while other libaries in the state
allowed system wide access to materials.  As fee cards work the same way, the discussion included
both items.  It seems that libraries handle teacher cards differently.  Some libraries offer teacher cards
to non-resident teachers, some use fee cards for teacher cards and waive the fee.    We discussed a
system-wide fee card that would allow access to items across the system to be managed by MCFLS
with all fees collected and distributed a year’s end based on ownership of materials circulated.  We
also discussed charging an average taxpayer fee and limiting the number of items per year.  There was
discussion about capping the number of checkouts for teachers as well.  A committee was formed to
study this and bring it back to the group.

LSTA Project: Understanding KnowBe4 reports
Steve Heser reviewed the reports from this tool.

WPLC and Lucky Day Collections
Judy Pinger reported that OverDrive has a new Lucky Day product.  Titles in this collection would be
non-holdable and non-renewable, allowing the system to set lending policy.  WPLC is curious if there
might be interest in this.  There is no pricing available yet.  Directors discussed and encouraged Judy to
share more information when available.

Follow Up:  Annual purge of patron records
Wisconsin Public Library Annual Report Instructions for reporting the count of registered borrowers
encourages purging all patron records with $0 in fines, zero checkouts and expired at least 3 years.
The options are to do the purge and report the number or don’t report the number at all.  Directors
discussed this.  Steve will reach out to other systems and report back before a decision is made.

Damaged Items in delivery – procedure change
This procedure has been updated to require that damaged items be sent to the attention of Judy
Kaniasty for review before being paid.

Linked Patron Records
Jen Schmidt reviewed how some libraries are using the linked patron records feature in Sierra to link
family records together.  Jen noted that MCFLS would rather not have a system wide policy, thus
allowing member libraries to choose to use this function or not.  She also noted that the new
CountyCat app will allow patrons to have multiple cards on their app.

ATT A - MCFLS Board Minutes 2019-10
5 of 8

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 7 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 7 of 59



Extend Item Level Hold Pick-up Date
Jen Schmidt reported that libraries handle these requests from patrons differently, some allowing a
one-day extension on an item if there are no holds pending and others not allowing extension at all.
Directors discussed and agreed to have MCFLS draft a policy and bring it back for further discussion

Vacation
Steve announced he will be out of the office October 7-18

Poll:  Computer use by patrons with fines over threshold
Sheila O’Brien questioned how many libraries allow patrons to use computers if they have fines over
$5.01 threshold?  Various policies were shared such as allowing use of computers and basic databases
but not Hoopla or OverDrive, no databases accessed at all, issuing of a one-day guest pass and some
offer the opportunity to set up payment plans which then grant computer access.

ATT A - MCFLS Board Minutes 2019-10
6 of 8

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 8 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 8 of 59



M.C.F.L.S.
Financial Report

For the Nine Months Ending September 30, 2019

1 Original Budget Revised Budget Year to Date % Balance %
2
3 General Revenues
4 State Aid Revenue 2,855,317$ 2,855,317$ 2,855,318$ (100.00) (1)$ 0.00
5 Milwaukee County  Allocation 66,650$ 66,650$ 66,650$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
6 West Milwaukee Contract -Other 49,877$ 49,877$ 49,877$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
7 Interest on Invested Funds 2,000$ 2,000$ 14,760$ (738.00) (12,760)$ 638.00
8 Member Forms/Supplies Revenue 25,000$ 25,000$ 15,805$ (63.22) 9,195$ (36.78)
9 Member Postage Revenue 25,000$ 25,000$ 16,422$ (65.69) 8,578$ (34.31)
10 Member OCLC Revenue 116,297$ 116,297$ 116,297$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
11 Member Telecomm. Revenue 16,800$ 16,800$ 16,800$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
12 Member III Softwre Maint-Basic 200,838$ 200,838$ 200,514$ (99.84) 324$ (0.16)
13 Member III Softwre Maint-Other 45,473$ 45,473$ 45,472$ (100.00) 1$ (0.00)
14 Member Tech. Assist.-Time Rev. 15,000$ 15,000$ 11,750$ (78.33) 3,250$ (21.67)
15 Member Special Projects Revenu 80,000$ 80,000$ 57,027$ (71.28) 22,973$ (28.72)
16 Member Cataloging Contract Rev 149,846$ 149,846$ 149,845$ (100.00) 1$ (0.00)
17 Member Database Revenue 72,336$ 63,882$ 63,882$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
18 Member Catalog Enhancement Rev 25,627$ 25,627$ 25,638$ (100.04) (11)$ 0.04
19 Member Ecommerce Transaction 9,000$ 9,000$ 5,773$ (64.14) 3,227$ (35.86)
20 TNS Calls/Notices Revenue 3,000$ 3,000$ 1,038$ (34.60) 1,962$ (65.40)
21 Carryover Revenue 35,000$ 98,584$ 98,584$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
22 Staff Benefits/Co-Pay Revenue 35,804$ 36,641$ 26,738$ (72.97) 9,903$ (27.03)
23 LSTA Technology Grant Revenue -$ 17,107$ 17,107$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
24 Member Digital Content Rev 216,732$ 216,732$ 216,737$ (100.00) (5)$ 0.00
25 Member PC Mngmt License Rev 2,545$ 2,545$ 1,931$ (75.87) 614$ (24.13)
26 Member MKE Mixers Rev 1,400$ 1,400$ 1,400$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
27 Total General Revenues 4,049,542$ 4,122,616$ 4,075,365$ (98.85) 47,251$ (1.15)
28
29 Special Revenues
30 W. Milwaukee Borrowing Revene 52,916$ 52,916$ 52,916$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
31 Ecommerce Revenue 200,000$ 200,000$ 132,506$ (66.25) 67,494$ (33.75)
32 Total Special Revenues 252,916$ 252,916$ 185,422$ (73.31) 67,494$ (26.69)
33
34 Total Revenues 4,302,458$ 4,375,532$ 4,260,787$ (97.38) 114,745$ (2.62)
35
36 Original Budget Revised Budget Year to Date % Balance %
37
38 General Expenditures
39 Fringe Benefits Expense 179,610$ 179,610$ 136,937$ 76.24 42,673$ 23.76
40 Salaries Expense 374,158$ 374,158$ 271,900$ 72.67 102,258$ 27.33
41 Telephone Renewal Expense 1,000$ 600$ 403$ 67.17 197$ 32.83
42 Member Ecommerce Transaction E 9,000$ 9,000$ 6,060$ 67.33 2,940$ 32.67
43 TNS Calls/Notices Expense 3,000$ 1,200$ 807$ 67.25 393$ 32.75
44 Mileage/Auto Maint Expense 700$ 700$ 357$ 51.00 343$ 49.00
45 Conference/Training Expense 8,000$ 8,000$ 3,733$ 46.66 4,267$ 53.34
46 Memberships Expense 6,000$ 6,000$ 3,875$ 64.58 2,125$ 35.42
47 Continuing Education Expense 8,750$ 8,750$ 7,022$ 80.25 1,728$ 19.75
48 Office Supplies Expense 1,000$ 1,000$ 591$ 59.10 409$ 40.90
49 Copy Machine Maint. Expense 1,200$ 2,500$ 1,354$ 54.16 1,146$ 45.84
50 MCFLS Printing Expense 500$ 500$ -$ 0.00 500$ 100.00
51 MCFLS Printing for Mem Expense 5,000$ 5,000$ 3,534$ 70.68 1,466$ 29.32
52 MCFLS WI Pub Lib Consortium Ex 5,605$ 5,605$ 5,605$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
53 MCFLS Buying Pool 110,000$ 130,000$ 100,000$ 76.92 30,000$ 23.08

11/8/2019 at 12:22 PM Page: 1For Management Purposes Only ATT A - MCFLS Board Minutes 2019-10
7 of 8

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 9 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 9 of 59



M.C.F.L.S.
Financial Report

For the Nine Months Ending September 30, 2019

54 MCFLS Database Expense 20,700$ 27,450$ 27,450$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
55 Member Database Expense 72,336$ 63,882$ 63,877$ 99.99 5$ 0.01
56 MCFLS Catalog Enhancement Expe 65,674$ 80,574$ 67,497$ 83.77 13,077$ 16.23
57 Member Catalog Enhancement Exp 25,627$ 25,627$ 23,627$ 92.20 2,000$ 7.80
58 MCFLS Postage Expense 600$ 600$ 519$ 86.50 81$ 13.50
59 Member Postage Expense 25,000$ 25,000$ 22,225$ 88.90 2,775$ 11.10
60 Member Forms/Supplies Expense 25,000$ 25,000$ 8,828$ 35.31 16,172$ 64.69
61 Telephone Expense 5,000$ 5,000$ 2,629$ 52.58 2,371$ 47.42
62 Meetings Expense 500$ 500$ 278$ 55.60 222$ 44.40
63 Insurance Expense 11,500$ 11,500$ 11,259$ 97.90 241$ 2.10
64 Legal Expense 500$ 500$ -$ 0.00 500$ 100.00
65 Audit Expense 12,250$ 12,250$ 10,000$ 81.63 2,250$ 18.37
66 Payroll Service Expense 4,200$ 5,200$ 3,054$ 58.73 2,146$ 41.27
67 III Software Support Expense 246,311$ 246,311$ 241,214$ 97.93 5,097$ 2.07
68 III TNS Subscr Exp 12,224$ 12,224$ 12,224$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
69 Member Telecomm. Expense 16,800$ 16,800$ 8,400$ 50.00 8,400$ 50.00
70 MCFLS Telecomm. Maint. Expense 10,000$ 10,000$ 3,250$ 32.50 6,750$ 67.50
71 OCLC Expense 130,165$ 130,165$ 125,000$ 96.03 5,165$ 3.97
72 MCFLS Computer Room Equipment 5,000$ 25,000$ 13,718$ 54.87 11,282$ 45.13
73 MCFLS Software Expense 2,500$ 2,500$ 2,578$ 103.12 (78)$ (3.12)
74 MCFLS Equipment Expense 12,000$ 15,000$ 13,722$ 91.48 1,278$ 8.52
75 Member Special Projects Expens 80,000$ 80,000$ 64,939$ 81.17 15,061$ 18.83
76 Sorting and Delivery Expense 291,700$ 291,700$ 189,294$ 64.89 102,406$ 35.11
77 South Central Delivery Expense 21,697$ 21,697$ 10,849$ 50.00 10,848$ 50.00
78 Auto Payment/Maintenance Exp. 1,000$ 1,000$ 495$ 49.50 505$ 50.50
79 MPL Resource Contract Expense 185,596$ 185,596$ 139,197$ 75.00 46,399$ 25.00
80 MPL Rent Lease Contract Exp. 129,815$ 129,815$ 97,361$ 75.00 32,454$ 25.00
81 ILS Expense 37,000$ 37,000$ 27,338$ 73.89 9,662$ 26.11
82 MCFLS Catalog Cont Exp to MPL 285,532$ 285,532$ 214,149$ 75.00 71,383$ 25.00
83 Member Catalog Contract Exp. 149,846$ 149,846$ 112,385$ 75.00 37,461$ 25.00
84 MCFLS Collection Dev Tool Exp 28,000$ 28,000$ 23,800$ 85.00 4,200$ 15.00
85 Internet Expense 20,500$ 20,500$ 13,781$ 67.22 6,719$ 32.78
86 Contingency Expense 29,029$ 34,334$ 4,922$ 14.34 29,412$ 85.66
87 LSTA Technology Grant Expense -$ 17,107$ 17,107$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
88 Member Digital Content Exp 216,732$ 216,732$ 215,187$ 99.29 1,545$ 0.71
89 Marketing 10,000$ 10,000$ 7,536$ 75.36 2,464$ 24.64
90 MCFLS Strategic Planning Exp 4,800$ 6,166$ 6,166$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
91 Cooperative Purchasing Sub Exp 3,000$ 3,000$ 1,791$ 59.70 1,209$ 40.30
92 Member PC Mngmt License Ex 1,875$ 1,875$ 1,876$ 100.05 (1)$ (0.05)
93 Member MKE Mixer Exp 1,400$ 1,400$ -$ 0.00 1,400$ 100.00
94 Total General Expenditures 2,914,932$ 2,995,006$ 2,351,700$ 78.52 643,306$ 21.48
95
96 Special Expenditures
97 W. Milwaukee Borrowing Expense 52,916$ 52,916$ 52,915$ 100.00 1$ 0.00
98 RB - MCFLS Payment Expense 1,034,610$ 1,034,610$ 1,034,609$ 100.00 1$ 0.00
99 Ecommerce Expense 200,000$ 200,000$ 132,506$ 66.25 67,494$ 33.75
100 Sierra Server Implementation 100,000$ 93,000$ 89,444$ 96.18 3,556$ 3.82
101 Total Special Expenditures 1,387,526$ 1,380,526$ 1,309,474$ 94.85 71,052$ 5.15
102
103 Total Expenditures 4,302,458$ 4,375,532$ 3,661,174$ 83.67 714,358$ 16.33
104
105 Revenue/Expenditures +/- 599,613$

11/8/2019 at 12:22 PM Page: 2For Management Purposes Only ATT A - MCFLS Board Minutes 2019-10
8 of 8

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 10 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 10 of 59



December 16, 2019

To:  MCFLS Board of Trustees
From:  Susan Draeger-Anderson
North Shore Library
Summary of LDAC Meeting 11/07/2019
Location: Franklin Public Library

2020 MCFLS Budget
Steve Heser reviewed changes to the 2020 MCFLS Budget.  He reported that State aid will remain flat for
2020 and County aid is also expected to be flat. A director suggested that if County aid is higher than
expected, it should be reimbursed to all member libraries.

Marketing and Advocacy Committee
Steve Heser thanked the Marketing Committee, Pete Loeffel, Rachel Collins, Emily Vieyra and Kurt
Glaisner for their work on the this project.  He reported that they focused a lot on representation on the
committee.  Directors felt that adding more professionals to the committee would help, knowing that it
might be difficult for them to attend every meeting due to work commitments. Steve will redraft and
bring it back incorporating suggestions.

MCFLS System Privacy Policy and Policy Template for Member Libraries
We had discussed Privacy Policies in the past.  Steve Heser did some research on this and let the group
know that a number of systems have developed a boiler plate privacy policy for all its members to use.
Steve put a policy together for MCFLS and created one for member libraries to consider personalizing
for themselves.  Steve reviewed the policies.  Pete Loeffel commented on a few items as he has been
working on a version for Wauwatosa.  There was discussion on what information can be shared with
police requests and it was noted that subpoenas for System held information go to MCFLS.  Steve Heser
noted that he will fold in the Patron Confidentiality Policy into the sample and share it with member
libraries to consider.

Update on Accounting Procedure to Replace Cash Bags
Steve Heser provided a chart showing YTD 2019 replacement, manual and lost materials fines.  He also
provided a second chart showing late fee fines, in case member libraries would like to add overdue fines
to this process. This was laid over as a future topic.

CountyCat Mobile Update
Jen Schmidt reported that work continues on the app and testing will start next week.  A tentative
release date of December 1st is the goal.  Training for staff starts this week.

ATT B - LDAC Summary 2019-11
1 of 2

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 11 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 11 of 59



Proposed Policy for Extending Item Holds on the Holdshelf
There was discussion of allowing staff to extend holds on materials on the holdshelf for one day at
patron phone request.  Jen Schmidt created a policy for LDAC review.  After much discussion, director’s
felt it was a time consuming process that might be taken advantage of.  This proposal was not approved.

Discussion:  2 Week Circulation Periods for New Titles
As a result of a recent survey, Amy Krahn from St. Francis reported that patrons are asking for longer
checkout periods for new materials. She asked if other libraries would consider a two week checkout for
these materials in order to provide more consistency for patrons.  A few LDAC members are willing to
bring this topic to their Boards.  Some already offer two weeks for new materials.

LDAC 2020 Meeting Dates
Steve Heser circulated a list of 2020 LDAC meeting dates asking for hosts.  Sheila O’Brien from
Greenfield suggested having some virtual meetings as it can be difficult to get out of the library.  Other
directors said they prefer fact-to-face meetings.

CFRA Market Scope Database
Steve Heser reported that this resource has very low usage.  He recommends not renewing it for 2020.
Directors agreed to drop this product.

Bucks and Admirals Programs
Steve Heser reported that he reached out to the Milwaukee Bucks and the Milwaukee Admirals
concerning a youth reading partnership.  Neither have responded. Rachel Collins from Shorewood
reported that Youth Services Librarian, Heidi Piehler, is working on a READ poster idea with the
Milwaukee Brewers and if her idea is chosen, this could be an opportunity for MCFLS member Libraries.
Steve Heser will follow up with Heidi to learn more about her project.

Computer Use by Patrons with Fines over $5 Threshold
Sheila O’Brien from Greenfield reported that Greenfield will be allowing patrons to use computers
regardless of what they owe because it eliminates the need for patrons to explain their financial
situation to staff.  She asked what other libraries do when registrations expire as the policy is to have
patrons settle their accounts at this time.  After discussion it was noted that MPL’s practice is to have
patrons pay or set up payment plan in order to continue computer use.

Sharing Vendor Costs
Susan Draeger-Anderson stated she would be willing to work on a project where member library
directors can compare pricing on products and services purchased by other libraries if there is interest.
There was concern that some contracts prohibit sharing costs with others.  Draeger-Anderson stated
that only allowed costs could be shared.

ATT B - LDAC Summary 2019-11
2 of 2

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 12 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 12 of 59



December 16, 2019

To:  MCFLS Board of Trustees
From:  Susan Draeger-Anderson
North Shore Library
Summary of LDAC Meeting 12/05/2019
Location: Greenfield Public Library

Government Alliance on Race and Equity (GARE)
Kristina Gomez from MPL discussed GARE and the core concepts of training she attended
earlier this year.  Kristina reported that GARE is a National Network to address community
racism.  Milwaukee County is a core member and has access to an online toolkit.  She discussed
the importance of nurturing diversity partners and recognizing racism.  We discussed fines and
racial equity and if going fine free would be a solution.  Kristina urged us to go to the website.

2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan Review and Discussion
Steve Heser reviewed the 10 Goals of the MCFLS Technology Plan and the activities supporting
these goals. These are the technical needs for the immediate future.  Steve stressed the
importance of technology life cycle planning. Steve hopes to streamline this report for 2021
and will present it to LDAC in October going forward.  Steve discussed the need to put gateway
routers on a replacement plan over the next 5 years (replacing 3/year).  The routers are
currently 10 years old and are working but are at the end of the expected life span.

LDAC 2020 Chair
This position will be filled by Rachel Arndt and Judy Pinger from MPL in 2020.  Judy will collect
agenda items and report to MCFLS and Rachel will chair the meetings.

LDAC 2020 Meeting Locations
Steve Heser provided a list of dates/locations of 2020 LDAC Meetings.

Proposal for an additional overdue notice sent out after 7 days
Jen Schmidt reported that currently the first overdue notice is sent at Day 14.  Circulation
Services would like to see one sent out at 7 days to keep patrons better informed.  Directors
approved this change

Patron Purge of Records follow-up

ATT B - LDAC Summary 2019-12
1 of 2

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 13 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 13 of 59



Steve Heser reported that he spoke with DPI about the need to inactive patron records in order
to be compliant.  He was told that the intent is for Systems to report the Count of Active Users.
Although purging patron records would help to clean up the database, it will not be needed to
stay in compliance for the annual report.

Library Involvement in Census 2020
Steve Heser asked if libraries were involved in the Census.  MPL is very active, adding tables to
recruit Census workers and will be adding a kiosk.  Some libraries are involved via their
community. Libraries expect library involvement to increase when this launches in April.

PLSR Discussion and feedback from webinars held in late November
Steve Heser provided slides from the COLAND Meeting.  The early emphasis will be on a
Learning Management System, and Analyzing the Current Funding Formula.  DPI is hiring a
Project Manager for Division Activities and PLSR will be one of the Projects this person will lead.
There will be an implementation summit in Spring 2020 to discuss setting priorities with a
maximum of 30-40 people.  It will include representation form MCFLS/MPL/Suburban Library.
Steve encouraged those interested in taking part to reach out to him.

CountyCat App Update
Jen Schmidt reported that the go live date is set for December 16.  She discussed that there
were a number of issues the developers are working to resolve.

Fine Free Discussion
Pete Loeffel from Wauwatosa reported the Wauwatosa Library will announce no fines on
Children’s materials regardless of the card on Monday, December 9th.  They will also waive
existing fines for children’s materials and waive fees and replacements of children’s materials
that are older than 7 years.  This is a costly move but is in line with the Wauwatosa Strategic
Initiative to reduce barriers.  Although MPL did a fine forgiveness program a few years ago and
has studied if those who participated in the program maintained an un-blocked card, there are
no immediate plans to go fine free.

Discussion on extent of Community Involvement in Hiring Library Employees
Kathy Manning from South Milwaukee asked what involvement other libraries are seeing from
their community HR departments.  Pete Loeffel from Wauwatosa shared his community
involvement.

ATT B - LDAC Summary 2019-12
2 of 2

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 14 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 14 of 59



M.C.F.L.S.
Financial Report

For the Ten Months Ending October 31, 2019

1
Original
Budget

Revised
Budget Year to Date % Balance %

2
3 General Revenues
4 State Aid Revenue 2,855,317$ 2,855,317$ 2,855,318$ (100.00) (1)$ 0.00
5 Milwaukee County  Allocation 66,650$ 66,650$ 66,650$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
6 West Milwaukee Contract -Other 49,877$ 49,877$ 49,877$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
7 Interest on Invested Funds 2,000$ 2,000$ 14,760$ (738.00) (12,760)$ 638.00
8 Member Forms/Supplies Rev (60) 25,000$ 25,000$ 15,805$ (63.22) 9,195$ (36.78)
9 Member Postage Revenue (59) 25,000$ 25,000$ 16,422$ (65.69) 8,578$ (34.31)
10 Member OCLC Revenue 116,297$ 116,297$ 116,297$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
11 Member Telecomm. Revenue (69) 16,800$ 16,800$ 16,800$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
12 Member III Softwre Maint-Basi (67) 200,838$ 200,838$ 200,514$ (99.84) 324$ (0.16)
13 Member III Softwre Maint-Other (67) 45,473$ 45,473$ 45,472$ (100.00) 1$ (0.00)
14 Member Tech. Assist.-Time Rev. 15,000$ 15,000$ 11,892$ (79.28) 3,108$ (20.72)
15 Member Special Projects Revenu (75) 80,000$ 80,000$ 57,762$ (72.20) 22,238$ (27.80)
16 Member Cataloging Contract Rev (83) 149,846$ 149,846$ 149,845$ (100.00) 1$ (0.00)
17 Member Database Revenue (55) 72,336$ 63,882$ 63,882$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
18 Member Catalog Enhancement Rev 25,627$ 25,627$ 25,638$ (100.04) (11)$ 0.04
19 Member Ecommerce Transaction (57) 9,000$ 9,000$ 5,773$ (64.14) 3,227$ (35.86)
20 TNS Calls/Notices Revenue (43) 3,000$ 3,000$ 1,038$ (34.60) 1,962$ (65.40)
21 Carryover Revenue 35,000$ 98,584$ 98,584$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
22 Staff Benefits/Co-Pay Revenue 35,804$ 36,641$ 30,983$ (84.56) 5,658$ (15.44)
23 LSTA Technology Grant Rev (87) -$ 17,107$ 17,107$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
24 Member Digital Content Rev (88) 216,732$ 216,732$ 216,737$ (100.00) (5)$ 0.00
25 Member PC Mngmt License Rev (92) 2,545$ 2,545$ 1,931$ (75.87) 614$ (24.13)
26 Member MKE Mixers Rev (93) 1,400$ 1,400$ 1,400$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
27 Total General Revenues 4,049,542$ 4,122,616$ 4,080,487$ (98.98) 42,129$ (1.02)
28
29 Special Revenues
30 W. Milw Borrowing Rev (97) 52,916$ 52,916$ 52,916$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
31 Ecommerce Revenue (99) 200,000$ 200,000$ 172,613$ (86.31) 27,387$ (13.69)
32 Total Special Revenues 252,916$ 252,916$ 225,529$ (89.17) 27,387$ (10.83)
33
34 Total Revenues 4,302,458$ 4,375,532$ 4,306,016$ (98.41) 69,516$ (1.59)
35

36
Original
Budget

Revised
Budget Year to Date % Balance %

37
38 General Expenditures
39 Fringe Benefits Expense 179,610$ 179,610$ 152,385$ 84.84 27,225$ 15.16
40 Salaries Expense 374,158$ 374,158$ 313,872$ 83.89 60,286$ 16.11
41 Telephone Renewal Expense 1,000$ 600$ 454$ 75.67 146$ 24.33
42 Member Ecommerce Transaction E 9,000$ 9,000$ 6,060$ 67.33 2,940$ 32.67
43 TNS Calls/Notices Expense (20) 3,000$ 1,200$ 907$ 75.58 293$ 24.42
44 Mileage/Auto Maint Expense 700$ 700$ 470$ 67.14 230$ 32.86
45 Conference/Training Expense 8,000$ 8,000$ 4,933$ 61.66 3,067$ 38.34
46 Memberships Expense 6,000$ 6,000$ 3,875$ 64.58 2,125$ 35.42
47 Continuing Education Expense 8,750$ 8,750$ 7,034$ 80.39 1,716$ 19.61
48 Office Supplies Expense 1,000$ 1,000$ 610$ 61.00 390$ 39.00
49 Copy Machine Maint. Expense 1,200$ 2,500$ 1,715$ 68.60 785$ 31.40
50 MCFLS Printing Expense 500$ 500$ -$ 0.00 500$ 100.00
51 MCFLS Printing for Mem Expense 5,000$ 5,000$ 3,534$ 70.68 1,466$ 29.32
52 MCFLS WI Pub Lib Consortium Ex 5,605$ 5,605$ 5,605$ 100.00 -$ 0.00

12/10/2019 at 2:38 PM Page: 1For Management Purposes Only ATT C - October 2019 Financial Report
1 of 2

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 15 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 15 of 59



M.C.F.L.S.
Financial Report

For the Ten Months Ending October 31, 2019

53 MCFLS Buying Pool 110,000$ 130,000$ 100,000$ 76.92 30,000$ 23.08
54 MCFLS Database Expense 20,700$ 27,450$ 27,450$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
55 Member Database Expense (17) 72,336$ 63,882$ 63,877$ 99.99 5$ 0.01
56 MCFLS Catalog Enhancement Expe 65,674$ 80,574$ 67,497$ 83.77 13,077$ 16.23
57 Member Catalog Enhancement Ex (19) 25,627$ 25,627$ 23,627$ 92.20 2,000$ 7.80
58 MCFLS Postage Expense 600$ 600$ 519$ 86.50 81$ 13.50
59 Member Postage Expense (9) 25,000$ 25,000$ 22,225$ 88.90 2,775$ 11.10
60 Member Forms/Supplies Exp (8) 25,000$ 25,000$ 10,088$ 40.35 14,912$ 59.65
61 Telephone Expense 5,000$ 5,000$ 2,897$ 57.94 2,103$ 42.06
62 Meetings Expense 500$ 500$ 278$ 55.60 222$ 44.40
63 Insurance Expense 11,500$ 11,500$ 11,259$ 97.90 241$ 2.10
64 Legal Expense 500$ 500$ -$ 0.00 500$ 100.00
65 Audit Expense 12,250$ 12,250$ 12,000$ 97.96 250$ 2.04
66 Payroll Service Expense 4,200$ 5,200$ 3,528$ 67.85 1,672$ 32.15
67 III Softwre Support Expense (12 & 13) 246,311$ 246,311$ 241,214$ 97.93 5,097$ 2.07
68 III TNS Subscr Exp 12,224$ 12,224$ 12,224$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
69 Member Telecomm. Expense (11) 16,800$ 16,800$ 8,400$ 50.00 8,400$ 50.00
70 MCFLS Telecomm. Maint. Expense 10,000$ 10,000$ 3,250$ 32.50 6,750$ 67.50
71 OCLC Expense 130,165$ 130,165$ 125,000$ 96.03 5,165$ 3.97
72 MCFLS Computer Room Equipment 5,000$ 25,000$ 21,117$ 84.47 3,883$ 15.53
73 MCFLS Software Expense 2,500$ 2,500$ 3,075$ 123.00 (575)$ (23.00)
74 MCFLS Equipment Expense 12,000$ 15,000$ 13,722$ 91.48 1,278$ 8.52
75 Member Special Projects Expens (15) 80,000$ 80,000$ 64,939$ 81.17 15,061$ 18.83
76 Sorting and Delivery Expense 291,700$ 291,700$ 212,949$ 73.00 78,751$ 27.00
77 South Central Delivery Expense 21,697$ 21,697$ 21,697$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
78 Auto Payment/Maintenance Exp. 1,000$ 1,000$ 495$ 49.50 505$ 50.50
79 MPL Resource Contract Expense 185,596$ 185,596$ 139,197$ 75.00 46,399$ 25.00
80 MPL Rent Lease Contract Exp. 129,815$ 129,815$ 97,361$ 75.00 32,454$ 25.00
81 ILS Expense 37,000$ 37,000$ 27,338$ 73.89 9,662$ 26.11
82 MCFLS Catalog Cont Exp to MPL 285,532$ 285,532$ 214,149$ 75.00 71,383$ 25.00
83 Member Catalog Contract Exp. (16) 149,846$ 149,846$ 112,385$ 75.00 37,461$ 25.00
84 MCFLS Collection Dev Tool Exp 28,000$ 28,000$ 23,800$ 85.00 4,200$ 15.00
85 Internet Expense 20,500$ 20,500$ 13,781$ 67.22 6,719$ 32.78
86 Contingency Expense 29,029$ 34,334$ 5,648$ 16.45 28,686$ 83.55
87 LSTA Technology Grant Expense (23) -$ 17,107$ 17,107$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
88 Member Digital Content Exp (24) 216,732$ 216,732$ 215,187$ 99.29 1,545$ 0.71
89 Marketing 10,000$ 10,000$ 10,260$ 102.60 (260)$ (2.60)
90 MCFLS Strategic Planning Exp 4,800$ 6,166$ 6,166$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
91 Cooperative Purchasing Sub Exp 3,000$ 3,000$ 1,791$ 59.70 1,209$ 40.30
92 Member PC Mngmt License Ex (25) 1,875$ 1,875$ 1,876$ 100.05 (1)$ (0.05)
93 Member MKE Mixer Exp (26) 1,400$ 1,400$ 1,400$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
94 Total General Expenditures 2,914,932$ 2,995,006$ 2,462,227$ 82.21 532,779$ 17.79
95
96 Special Expenditures
97 W. Milw Borrowing Exp (30) 52,916$ 52,916$ 52,915$ 100.00 1$ 0.00
98 RB - MCFLS Payment Expense 1,034,610$ 1,034,610$ 1,034,609$ 100.00 1$ 0.00
99 Ecommerce Expense (31) 200,000$ 200,000$ 172,613$ 86.31 27,387$ 13.69
100 Sierra Server Implementation 100,000$ 93,000$ 91,452$ 98.34 1,548$ 1.66
101 Total Special Expenditures 1,387,526$ 1,380,526$ 1,351,589$ 97.90 28,937$ 2.10
102
103 Total Expenditures 4,302,458$ 4,375,532$ 3,813,816$ 87.16 561,716$ 12.84
104
105 Revenue/Expenditures +/- 492,200$

12/10/2019 at 2:38 PM Page: 2For Management Purposes Only ATT C - October 2019 Financial Report
2 of 2

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 16 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 16 of 59



M.C.F.L.S.
Financial Report

For the Eleven Months Ending November 30, 2019

1
Original
Budget

Revised
Budget Year to Date % Balance %

2
3 General Revenues
4 State Aid Revenue 2,855,317$ 2,855,317$ 2,855,318$ (100.00) (1)$ 0.00
5 Milwaukee County  Allocation 66,650$ 66,650$ 66,650$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
6 West Milwaukee Contract -Other 49,877$ 49,877$ 49,877$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
7 Interest on Invested Funds 2,000$ 2,000$ 19,297$ (964.85) (17,297)$ 864.85
8 Member Forms/Supplies Rev (60) 25,000$ 25,000$ 20,670$ (82.68) 4,330$ (17.32)
9 Member Postage Revenue (59) 25,000$ 25,000$ 21,679$ (86.72) 3,321$ (13.28)
10 Member OCLC Revenue 116,297$ 116,297$ 116,297$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
11 Member Telecomm. Revenue (69) 16,800$ 16,800$ 16,800$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
12 Member III Softwre Maint-Basi 200,838$ 200,838$ 200,514$ (99.84) 324$ (0.16)
13 Member III Softwre Maint-Other 45,473$ 45,473$ 45,472$ (100.00) 1$ (0.00)
14 Member Tech. Assist.-Time Rev. 15,000$ 15,000$ 16,010$ (106.73) (1,010)$ 6.73
15 Member Special Projects Revenu 80,000$ 80,000$ 59,816$ (74.77) 20,184$ (25.23)
16 Member Cataloging Contract Rev 149,846$ 149,846$ 149,845$ (100.00) 1$ (0.00)
17 Member Database Revenue (55) 72,336$ 63,882$ 63,882$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
18 Member Catalog Enhancement Rev 25,627$ 25,627$ 25,638$ (100.04) (11)$ 0.04
19 Member Ecommerce Transaction 9,000$ 9,000$ 9,104$ (101.16) (104)$ 1.16
20 TNS Calls/Notices Revenue (43) 3,000$ 3,000$ 1,310$ (43.67) 1,690$ (56.33)
21 Carryover Revenue 35,000$ 98,584$ 98,584$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
22 Staff Benefits/Co-Pay Revenue 35,804$ 36,641$ 33,812$ (92.28) 2,829$ (7.72)
23 LSTA Technology Grant Revenue -$ 17,107$ 17,107$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
24 Member Digital Content Rev (88) 216,732$ 216,732$ 216,737$ (100.00) (5)$ 0.00
25 Member PC Mngmt License Rev 2,545$ 2,545$ 2,575$ (101.18) (30)$ 1.18
26 Member MKE Mixers Rev (93) 1,400$ 1,400$ 1,400$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
27 Total General Revenues 4,049,542$ 4,122,616$ 4,108,394$ (99.66) 14,222$ (0.34)
28
29 Special Revenues
30 W. Milw Borrowing Rev (97) 52,916$ 52,916$ 52,916$ (100.00) -$ 0.00
31 Ecommerce Revenue (99) 200,000$ 200,000$ 172,613$ (86.31) 27,387$ (13.69)
32 Total Special Revenues 252,916$ 252,916$ 225,529$ (89.17) 27,387$ (10.83)
33
34 Total Revenues 4,302,458$ 4,375,532$ 4,333,923$ (99.05) 41,609$ (0.95)
35

36
Original
Budget

Revised
Budget Year to Date % Balance %

37
38 General Expenditures
39 Fringe Benefits Expense 179,610$ 179,610$ 168,654$ 93.90 10,956$ 6.10
40 Salaries Expense 374,158$ 374,158$ 343,853$ 91.90 30,305$ 8.10
41 Telephone Renewal Expense 1,000$ 600$ 504$ 84.00 96$ 16.00
42 Member Ecommerce Transaction E 9,000$ 9,000$ 7,307$ 81.19 1,693$ 18.81
43 TNS Calls/Notices Expense (20) 3,000$ 1,200$ 1,008$ 84.00 192$ 16.00
44 Mileage/Auto Maint Expense 700$ 700$ 470$ 67.14 230$ 32.86
45 Conference/Training Expense 8,000$ 8,000$ 5,206$ 65.08 2,794$ 34.93
46 Memberships Expense 6,000$ 6,000$ 3,875$ 64.58 2,125$ 35.42
47 Continuing Education Expense 8,750$ 8,750$ 7,034$ 80.39 1,716$ 19.61
48 Office Supplies Expense 1,000$ 1,000$ 636$ 63.60 364$ 36.40
49 Copy Machine Maint. Expense 1,200$ 2,500$ 1,715$ 68.60 785$ 31.40
50 MCFLS Printing Expense 500$ 500$ -$ 0.00 500$ 100.00
51 MCFLS Printing for Mem Expense 5,000$ 5,000$ 3,534$ 70.68 1,466$ 29.32
52 MCFLS WI Pub Lib Consortium Ex 5,605$ 5,605$ 5,605$ 100.00 -$ 0.00

12/10/2019 at 2:38 PM Page: 1For Management Purposes Only ATT C - November 2019 Financial Report
1 of 2

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 17 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 17 of 59



M.C.F.L.S.
Financial Report

For the Eleven Months Ending November 30, 2019

53 MCFLS Buying Pool 110,000$ 130,000$ 100,000$ 76.92 30,000$ 23.08
54 MCFLS Database Expense 20,700$ 27,450$ 27,450$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
55 Member Database Expense (17) 72,336$ 63,882$ 63,877$ 99.99 5$ 0.01
56 MCFLS Catalog Enhancement Expe 65,674$ 80,574$ 68,300$ 84.77 12,274$ 15.23
57 Member Catalog Enhancement Exp 25,627$ 25,627$ 23,627$ 92.20 2,000$ 7.80
58 MCFLS Postage Expense 600$ 600$ 519$ 86.50 81$ 13.50
59 Member Postage Expense (9) 25,000$ 25,000$ 22,225$ 88.90 2,775$ 11.10
60 Member Forms/Supplies Exp (8) 25,000$ 25,000$ 11,885$ 47.54 13,115$ 52.46
61 Telephone Expense 5,000$ 5,000$ 3,490$ 69.80 1,510$ 30.20
62 Meetings Expense 500$ 500$ 278$ 55.60 222$ 44.40
63 Insurance Expense 11,500$ 11,500$ 11,259$ 97.90 241$ 2.10
64 Legal Expense 500$ 500$ -$ 0.00 500$ 100.00
65 Audit Expense 12,250$ 12,250$ 12,000$ 97.96 250$ 2.04
66 Payroll Service Expense 4,200$ 5,200$ 3,925$ 75.48 1,275$ 24.52
67 III Software Support Expense 246,311$ 246,311$ 241,214$ 97.93 5,097$ 2.07
68 III TNS Subscr Exp 12,224$ 12,224$ 12,224$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
69 Member Telecomm. Expense (11) 16,800$ 16,800$ 8,400$ 50.00 8,400$ 50.00
70 MCFLS Telecomm. Maint. Expense 10,000$ 10,000$ 3,250$ 32.50 6,750$ 67.50
71 OCLC Expense 130,165$ 130,165$ 125,000$ 96.03 5,165$ 3.97
72 MCFLS Computer Room Equipment 5,000$ 25,000$ 21,388$ 85.55 3,612$ 14.45
73 MCFLS Software Expense 2,500$ 2,500$ 3,075$ 123.00 (575)$ (23.00)
74 MCFLS Equipment Expense 12,000$ 15,000$ 13,722$ 91.48 1,278$ 8.52
75 Member Special Projects Expens 80,000$ 80,000$ 70,777$ 88.47 9,223$ 11.53
76 Sorting and Delivery Expense 291,700$ 291,700$ 238,292$ 81.69 53,408$ 18.31
77 South Central Delivery Expense 21,697$ 21,697$ 21,697$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
78 Auto Payment/Maintenance Exp. 1,000$ 1,000$ 495$ 49.50 505$ 50.50
79 MPL Resource Contract Expense 185,596$ 185,596$ 139,197$ 75.00 46,399$ 25.00
80 MPL Rent Lease Contract Exp. 129,815$ 129,815$ 97,361$ 75.00 32,454$ 25.00
81 ILS Expense 37,000$ 37,000$ 27,338$ 73.89 9,662$ 26.11
82 MCFLS Catalog Cont Exp to MPL 285,532$ 285,532$ 214,149$ 75.00 71,383$ 25.00
83 Member Catalog Contract Exp. 149,846$ 149,846$ 112,385$ 75.00 37,461$ 25.00
84 MCFLS Collection Dev Tool Exp 28,000$ 28,000$ 23,800$ 85.00 4,200$ 15.00
85 Internet Expense 20,500$ 20,500$ 16,366$ 79.83 4,134$ 20.17
86 Contingency Expense 29,029$ 34,334$ 5,707$ 16.62 28,627$ 83.38
87 LSTA Technology Grant Expense -$ 17,107$ 17,107$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
88 Member Digital Content Exp (24) 216,732$ 216,732$ 215,187$ 99.29 1,545$ 0.71
89 Marketing 10,000$ 10,000$ 10,725$ 107.25 (725)$ (7.25)
90 MCFLS Strategic Planning Exp 4,800$ 6,166$ 6,166$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
91 Cooperative Purchasing Sub Exp 3,000$ 3,000$ 1,791$ 59.70 1,209$ 40.30
92 Member PC Mngmt License Ex 1,875$ 1,875$ 1,876$ 100.05 (1)$ (0.05)
93 Member MKE Mixer Exp (26) 1,400$ 1,400$ 1,400$ 100.00 -$ 0.00
94 Total General Expenditures 2,914,932$ 2,995,006$ 2,548,325$ 85.09 446,681$ 14.91
95
96 Special Expenditures
97 W. Milw Borrowing Exp (30) 52,916$ 52,916$ 52,915$ 100.00 1$ 0.00
98 RB - MCFLS Payment Expense 1,034,610$ 1,034,610$ 1,034,609$ 100.00 1$ 0.00
99 Ecommerce Expense (31) 200,000$ 200,000$ 172,643$ 86.32 27,357$ 13.68
100 Sierra Server Implementation 100,000$ 93,000$ 91,452$ 98.34 1,548$ 1.66
101 Total Special Expenditures 1,387,526$ 1,380,526$ 1,351,619$ 97.91 28,907$ 2.09
102
103 Total Expenditures 4,302,458$ 4,375,532$ 3,899,944$ 89.13 475,588$ 10.87
104
105 Revenue/Expenditures +/- 433,979$

12/10/2019 at 2:38 PM Page: 2For Management Purposes Only ATT C - November 2019 Financial Report
2 of 2

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 18 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 18 of 59



2020 Proposed MCFLS Board Meeting Dates

The MCFLS Board of Trustees has traditionally met on the third Monday of the month. The
meeting dates below follow that schedule except when it conflicts with a national holiday. The
November and December meetings have been combined on the last Monday in November.

Date Time Location

Monday, January 27th 3:30 pm MCFLS Conference Room

Monday, February 17th 3:30 pm MCFLS Conference Room

Monday, March 16th 3:30 pm MCFLS Conference Room

Monday, April 20th 3:30 pm

Monday, May 18th 3:30 pm

Monday, June 15th 3:30 pm

Monday, July 20th 3:30 pm

Monday, August 17th 3:30 pm

Monday, September 21st 3:30 pm

Monday, October 19th 3:30 pm

Monday, November 30th 3:30 pm MCFLS Conference Room

ATT D - Proposed 2020 Board Meeting Dates
1 of 1

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 19 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 19 of 59



MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 20 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 20 of 59



M
CFLS

Technology
and Resource Sharing Plan, 2020-2024

Introduction and
Purpose

M
CFLS is a consortium

 of public libraries representing all 19 M
ilw

aukee County m
unicipalities (15 autonom

ous library boards)and serves a population of
approxim

ately 950,000
from

 28 physical locations. O
n behalf of all its m

em
bers, M

CFLS adm
inisters a shared autom

ation system
 (CountyCat), featuring

Innovative Interfaces Inc. library application softw
are.

The M
CFLS data com

m
unications netw

ork is a w
ide-area netw

ork (W
AN) of 15 locations (14 suburban libraries and the M

CFLS offices).  The central site (M
CFLS

M
ain O

ffice) hosts an ILS server, delivering Innovative Interfaces, Inc. library application softw
are to each of 14 suburban

library local-area netw
orks (LAN

s) via
1

Gbps(as of 09/26/2019) W
AN

 Service.  The Innovative Interfaces, Inc. library application softw
are is also delivered to the M

ilw
aukee Public Library W

AN
 via an

ethernet connection running from
 the M

CFLS office to the M
PL com

puter room
. From

 there the feed is forw
arded to all Central Library departm

ents and the 12
M

PL N
eighborhood facilities.  Suburban locations receive Internet services from

 a M
CFLS-contracted ISP via

1 Gbps (as of 09/26/19) Internet service.  Em
ail

services are provided through the O
utlook 360 cloud; w

ebsite hosting services are
provided by M

CFLS M
icrosoftW

indow
s Servers.

The new
ly revised system

 m
ission states thatM

CFLS providescollaborative leadership, advocacy, and
support for high-quality resources and services to

em
pow

er the capabilitiesand capacities of m
em

ber libraries to deliver responsive and innovative library services to all residents of M
ilw

aukee County.
This plan

w
as developed by M

CFLS system
 staff to support those

principles of collaboration and high-quality technical support for our m
em

bers.  The plan w
as w

ritten
w

ith feedback and critique provided by the Library Directors Advisory Council (LDAC), the M
CFLS Board, and

system
 staff.

The 2020-2024 M
CFLS Strategic Plan includestechnology as a m

ajor strategic direction for the system
.  Three m

ajor service goals w
ere identified by M

CFLS staff,
m

em
ber libraries and trustees:  developing training opportunities, tools and resources; decreasing barriers to access and im

proving the user experience of online
resources; and providing

infrastructure and innovative support to m
em

ber libraries to allow
 them

 to serve their com
m

unities both now
 and in the future.  These

goals have guided the developm
ent of this plan.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
1 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 21 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 21 of 59



Background
Located in M

ilw
aukee,M

CFLS
residesin the m

ost populous area of the state and has ready access to state-of-the-art netw
orking and technology services.  The

challenges posed to m
ore rural areas of the state w

ith regard to broadband access are not seen here as often, although addressing bandw
idth needs is alw

aysa
concern

as new
er services require m

ore and m
ore bandw

idth.

As a one county system
 all m

em
ber libraries are geographically very close w

hich provides its ow
n benefits and challenges w

ith
regard to technology.  W

hile
M

CFLS does nothave a dire need for rem
ote services to distant libraries, the close proxim

ity of com
m

unities creates the public expectation
that technology

services w
ill be consistent across all m

em
ber libraries.  The system

 advocates for consistent user experiences, butlibraries also m
ust consider the needs of their

ow
n com

m
unities.  Striking this balance betw

een m
em

ber library autonom
y and uniform

ity in user experiences inform
s this plan

and m
any others at M

CFLS.
Additionally, in recent years w

e have seen m
ore com

m
unities run hybrid netw

orks at libraries w
here the system

 and m
unicipality netw

orks run side-by-side.
Keeping the M

CFLS netw
ork secure w

hile m
eeting the needs of these com

m
unities has becom

e increasingly challenging.  M
aintaining and stream

lining netw
ork

services w
hile optim

izing the needs of our m
em

ber libraries is a concept that also underlies m
uch of this technology plan.

As m
entioned in the Introduction, the 2020-2024 M

CFLS Strategic Plan had a large influence on the developm
ent of this plan.  Enhancing

our technology
offerings to m

em
ber libraries and patrons w

as identified as a m
ajor priority

throughoutthe planning process.

In 2019, the system
 invested heavily in updating its on prem

ise hardw
are and disaster recovery capacity.  All three servers used

to support the ILS w
ere replaced,

giving M
CFLS updated hardw

are using the Red Hat Enterprise Linux (RHEL) version 7 operating system
.  In addition, the system

purchased a U
nitrends backup

appliance that provides daily offsite and cloud backups for all three servers and other m
ission critical hardw

are.  This m
eanscentral site

hardw
are replacem

ent is
not a near-term

 priority for the system
 and it also provides system

 staff the tim
e necessary to perform

 a review
 of other ILS options, a

directive of the M
CFLS

Board
also found in our strategic plan.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
2 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 22 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 22 of 59



N
eeds

and
Assets

Assessm
ent

Introduction

The M
ilw

aukee County Federated Library System
 serves m

em
ber libraries w

ith technology and resource sharing needs across the spectrum
.  The M

ilw
aukee

Public Library (M
PL), forexam

ple, has a w
ell-m

anaged IT departm
ent along w

ith its ow
n W

AN
 service.  M

PL connects to the M
CFLS netw

ork via a sim
ple

Ethernet connection through the firew
all and generally m

anages technology w
ith occasional assistance from

 system
 staff.  How

ever, ten
other suburban libraries

rely heavily on M
CFLS and system

 staff to purchase, im
plem

ent and m
aintain technology hardw

are and services.  In these instances the system
 can provide

tailored and cost-effective solutions that m
eet the needs of m

em
bers.  M

CFLS has the expertise and resources to serve both ends of the spectrum
.

W
AN

and Central Site Hardw
are

The current W
AN service exists as part of the Badgernet project and serves all 14 suburban m

em
ber libraries w

ith Internet, ILS and other system
 services.

In
2019, the system

upgraded its W
AN

 and Internet Traffic lines from
 500 M

bps to 1 Gbps service
each, allow

ing the system
 to m

eet the current and future
bandw

idth needs of m
em

bers.  In 2019 M
CFLS also purchased a U

nitrends backup appliance to provide disasterrecovery for m
ission critical hardw

are.  The
system

 hopes to continue support and collaboration w
ith SCLS and other system

s on a statew
ide backup solution, but the new

 appliance m
eets our current

needs for backupsand the system
 m

ay not elect to take partin early iterations of the project.
System

 staff have identified the need to replace prim
ary gatew

ay
routers at all suburban locations and w

ill start this process in 2020 and budget to replace 3 routers each year.  A new
 w

eb server is currently in developm
ent and

w
ill house a new

ly redesigned w
eb presence for the system

.
As w

ith other areas of our plan, the goals in this section are broad enough and largely unchanged,
but the activities w

ill evolve over the course of tim
e.

ILS

The current Innovative Sierra ILS has been in place since 2014 and our relationship w
ith Innovative goes back over 25 years.

In 2019, the system
researched and

invested heavily in new
 hardw

are to support the ILS.  This investm
ent allow

s system
 staff to now

 focus prim
arily on the

user experience and evaluating the ILS, a
strategic plan objective.

The system
 has already done w

ork to research and procure a new
 vendor for the CountyCat M

obile app.  Im
plem

entation for the app is
w

ell underw
ay and

w
illbe com

pleted in late 2019, but im
proving the user experience for patrons w

ill be a m
ajor them

e for the next five years.  System
agreem

ents for 2020-2024 have already been adjusted to fund these priorities.

Resource Sharing

Resource sharing, both internal to the system
 and externally across the state and beyond, continues to be a high priority.  An excellent delivery service

established w
ith a long-tim

e logistics vendor provides 24-48 hour turnaround for all m
em

ber libraries five days a w
eek.  This service is consistently rated high by

m
em

ber libraries during site visits.  The Interlibrary Loan Service Grant through M
ilw

aukee Public Library delivers cost effective service to allow
 patrons access to

m
aterials throughout the state.

Although not stated directly w
ithin the strategic plan, changes to the current E-IN

FO
PASS program

 w
hich allow

s access to m
ulti-

type collections in M
ilw

aukee County w
ill m

ost likely need to be addressed.  The service is no longer heavily used by academ
ic institutions although M

ilw
aukee

Public Library continues to field requests and provide resources through the service.

Electronic Resources

Throughout its history M
CFLS has brokered access to electronic resources for m

em
ber libraries to provide som

e m
easure of uniform

 access across the system
and provide econom

ies of scale to m
ake them

 m
ore affordable.  Expansion of system

-w
ide access to electronic resources w

as a m
ajor factor in the M

CFLS 2015

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
3 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 23 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 23 of 59



strategic planning process and continues to be reflected in the 2019 plan.  Because of the close geographic proxim
ity of allm

em
bers, there is a need for m

ore
resources allocated to electronic resourcesnot only to provide uniform

 service but to aid in m
arketing and advocacy efforts on behalf of the system

 and m
em

ber
libraries.  The current service used to m

eet this need, hoopla, is popular because of its ability to provide im
m

ediate content to users, butis also expensive
because of its cost-per-circ m

odel.  Assets in the form
 of additional funding have been allocated to electronic resources through adjustm

ents to 2020-2024
agreem

ents.  In 2020, an additional $25,000 w
ill be allocated (for a total of $135,000) and current plans call for an additional $5,000 allocation each year through

2024.

Training

Continuing education and training to increase system
 and m

em
ber library staff technology com

petencies has been a consistent need at M
CFLS and included in

the
current 2020-2024 strategic plan.

W
hile continuing education offerings through the SEW

I CE group and local training in ILS and electronic resources have
been a part of M

CFLS offerings, m
em

bers have identified new
 m

odels for training that they’d like the system
 to pursue.  O

ne such m
odel is providing shorter,

m
ore focused training pieces related to the ILS or electronic resources rather than full-blow

n exhaustive overview
s.  Another is to provide regular “Q

&
A” office

hours for m
em

bers to ask questions of system
 staff on specific topics.  Both activities are part of the 2020-2024 strategic plan.

Aligning and supporting the
developm

ent of system
 staff skills and know

ledge is also a stated service goal.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
4 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 24 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 24 of 59



Infrastructure and
Inventories

[W
ill also include an online link to inventory of M

CFLS-ow
ned equipm

ent at m
em

ber libraries].

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
5 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 25 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 25 of 59



Data
Data for the technology plan w

as collected as part of the 2020-2024 strategic planning process.  Tw
o surveys shared w

ith M
CFLS trustees, staff and m

em
ber

libraries w
ere conducted in late 2018 to identify high priorities for an all-day developm

ent m
eeting that took place in February 2019.  That m

eeting ultim
ately

identified the goals and activities in the current strategic plan.  Both surveys are included here as attachm
ents, although it should be m

entioned that not all of
the data collected revolved around technology needs but focused instead on overall system

 needs.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
6 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 26 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 26 of 59



Resource
Sharing

ILS—
M

CFLS provides a high-quality ILS through an Innovative Interfaces Sierra installation. M
CFLS has added a considerable am

ount of value-added features to
the ILS, including text notification, online paym

ent of fines, a m
obile application, and an Innovative Interfaces “Encore” public interface w

ith added Novelist
content. The bibliographic inform

ation in the catalog is kept accurate and up to date through an ongoing contract w
ith the M

ilw
aukee Public Library. M

CFLS staff
are w

ell trained on the ILS, keep their know
ledge up to date through conferences and training, and actively create training opportunities for M

CFLS m
em

ber
library staff. The ILS is also used to support various third-party softw

are products providing service to residents, including com
puter m

anagem
ent, RFID

circulation, and rem
ote database access.

W
AN

—
M

CFLS provides m
em

ber libraries w
ith a robust and dependable W

ide Area N
etw

ork.As of 2019
allsuburban m

em
berlibraries have had upgrades to

fiber connections, providing a 100 M
bps interface from

 the library to the M
CFLS headquarters. The W

AN
 serves suburban M

ilw
aukee libraries at1 Gbps. For the

m
ajority of m

em
ber libraries, this connection provides internet service

and the ILS. The M
ilw

aukee Public Library has access to the ILS through an Ethernet
connection in the m

ain building.

ILL—
Through the ILS and in-system

 delivery system
, M

CFLS
provides daily delivery of holds, returned item

s, and new
 m

aterials to all m
em

ber libraries. These
services directly support the m

ore than
6.1

m
illion circulation transactions in 2018. M

CFLS also contracts w
ith the M

ilw
aukee Public Library to provide

out-of-
system

 interlibrary loan. Delivery is m
anaged through a four-day-a-w

eek contract w
ith the South Central Library System

.

Delivery—
Prim

ary in-system
 delivery is m

anaged through a contract w
ith Action Logistics, w

hich sorts, transports, and delivers to
all m

em
ber libraries M

onday
through Friday. O

ut of system
 delivery is m

anaged through a contract w
ith the South Central Library System

, and tubs are delivered four days a w
eek.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
7 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 27 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 27 of 59



G
oals and Activities

G
oal 1

To insure that the w
ide area netw

ork (W
AN

)infrastructure of M
CFLS and the netw

ork structure of its m
em

ber libraries m
eet future

grow
th dem

ands in light of changing technological advancem
ents.

G
oal 2

To expand and im
prove the integrated library system

 (ILS) functionality to m
eet the needs ofusers and staff.

G
oal 3

To facilitate and expand resource sharing am
ong all libraries inside and outside of M

ilw
aukee County.

G
oal 4

To enhance the M
CFLS w

ebsite as w
ell as host m

em
ber library w

ebsites.

G
oal 5

To facilitate M
CFLS and m

em
ber library

participation in the W
isconsin Public Library Consortium

’s (W
PLC) digital dow

nload m
edia

buying pool.

G
oal 6

To help purchase and/or broker purchases of online databases.

G
oal 7

To assist m
em

ber library staff in becom
ing m

ore technologically know
ledgeable and proficient.

G
oal 8

To m
aintain and enhance M

CFLS technology staff professional com
petencies.

G
oal 9

To organize and m
aintain all appropriate autom

ation product licensing, technical docum
entation and assist m

em
bers in technology

life cycle planning.

G
oal 10

To insure adequate funding for the Technology Plan.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
8 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 28 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 28 of 59



O
bjectives and

Activities
–

G
oal 1.

To insure that the w
ide area netw

ork (W
AN

) infrastructure of M
CFLS and the netw

ork structure of its
m

em
ber libraries m

eet future grow
th dem

ands in
light of changing technological advancem

ents.
G

oal 1:To insure that the w
ide area netw

ork (W
AN) infrastructure of M

CFLS and the netw
ork structure of its m

em
ber

libraries m
eet future grow

th dem
ands in light of changing technological advancem

ents.
U

se to
track goal progress

O
bjectives and Activities

Person(s)
Responsible
for Ensuring
Activities are
Com

pleted

Tim
eline

for
Com

pleting
the O

bjective
and Activities

Resources N
eeded

to Achieve
O

bjective

Cost
Evaluation
M

ethod
Progress
Tow

ard
Achieving
O

bjective

Com
m

ents

O
bjective

1.1
Im

prove the
current central site server
environm

ent

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.1
M

aintain and/or upgrade
central site W

indow
s servers

(hardw
are and softw

are) to the
latest essential technology, i.e.
identifying and

im
plem

enting
any required hardw

are, service
packs, hot fixes, and new
softw

are releases.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Continuous
evaluation of
central site
hardw

are
status.

Budget
appropriately
for any
necessary
changes.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.1
M

aintain essential softw
are

to prevent virus, w
orm

, and
hacking attacks.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

U
p to date

Sym
antec

softw
are and

firew
all

firm
w

are.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
1.1

M
aintain essential

hardw
are and softw

are to
provide an efficient
m

ethodology in controlling
(rem

otely) central site
W

indow
s servers and netw

ork
equipm

ent.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

M
aintain

current Rem
ote

Desktop
Protocol
standard and
ensure security
through firew

all.

O
bjective

1.2
Im

prove the M
CFLS

netw
ork connection and

provide
adm

inistrative oversight of the
M

CFLS netw
ork.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
9 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 29 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 29 of 59



Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.2
M

onitor netw
ork

bandw
idth usage, explore and

im
plem

ent essential solutions
to im

prove netw
ork

perform
ance on the M

CFLS
w

ide area netw
ork (W

AN) and
the

Internet.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

U
se PRTG

softw
are to

provide
m

onitoring and
im

prove
notification
process.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.2
Serve as the point-of-

contact for TEACH data lines
and coordinate problem
resolution w

ith BadgerN
et

(W
isconsin’s state-w

ide
netw

ork services).

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

O
ngoing.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.2
M

onitor new
 data

com
m

unications technology
and, in consultation w

ith the
LDAC, im

plem
ent desired

changes.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

O
ngoing.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.2
Provide adm

inistrative
supportto the w

eb-based
em

ail system
 used by m

em
ber

library staff.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

O
ngoing.  Look

to provide
im

provem
ents

to O
utlook 365

w
hen possible.

O
bjective

1.3
U

pdate central site
disaster avoidance and
preparedness plan, insuring the
continuation of essential services
in case of an em

ergency.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
1.3

U
pdate plan docum

entation
w

hen there is a change in the
follow

ing areas: personnel,
equipm

ent,softw
are

application, notification tree,
security, etc.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

O
ngoing.

M
onitor and

im
prove recent

changes to allow
m

em
ber

libraries to

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
10 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 30 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 30 of 59



add/change
staff access.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.3
M

aintain and/or upgrade
data backup

softw
are

application for all M
CFLS

servers and w
orkstations.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Add rem
aining

system
 servers

to U
nitrends

backup solution.
U

pgrade
U

nitrends
firm

w
are as

appropriate.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
1.3

M
aintain and/or upgrade

hardw
are equipm

ent for data
protection and recovery: onsite
and offsite backup storage
servers, uninterrupted pow

er
system

s (UPS), etc.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

O
ngoing.

Ensure all
hardw

are
equipm

ent is
m

aintained and
upgraded as
appropriate.

O
bjective

1.4
W

ork w
ith m

em
ber

libraries to im
prove the rem

ote
site netw

ork structure in order to
m

axim
ize netw

ork functionality.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
1.4

As specified in the M
CFLS

M
em

ber agreem
ent, m

aintain
current M

CFLS data
com

m
unicationshardw

are and
softw

are (e.g. routers,
sw

itches) located at local
m

em
ber library sites.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

M
aintain

existing
equipm

ent and
provide
upgrades w

hen
necessary.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.4
Replace

m
em

ber library
gatew

ay routers to
ensure

netw
ork stability and future

expansion capability.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Each year
budget for
replacem

ent of
3 m

em
ber

library gatew
ay

routers.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
11 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 31 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 31 of 59



Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.4
Im

plem
ent M

CFLS Board
fiscal policy concerning locally
funded data

com
m

unications
upgrade initiatives.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Continue to use
Badgernet and
explore
opportunities to
im

prove service
to m

em
bers.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.4
Provide consultation and

technical assistance to any
m

em
ber library w

ho
initiates a

request to m
ove outside of the

M
CFLS W

AN
 or to m

ove back
inside of the M

CFLS W
AN

.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Docum
ent

W
hitefish Bay

process to use
as tem

plate for
other m

em
bers.

O
bjective

1.5
As specified in the

M
CFLS M

em
ber Agreem

ent,
assistm

em
bers w

ith necessary
technical assistance in order to
m

aintain rem
ote site hardw

are
and softw

are ow
ned by local

m
em

ber libraries.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
1.5

(At the request of a
m

em
ber library), assist in

coordinating purchases of PC
and

peripheral devices using
the statew

ide collaborative
purchasing agreem

ent.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Show
 cost

savings to
m

em
bers in

technology
annual report.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.5
(At the request of a

m
em

ber library), provide
rem

ote Help
Desk services via

telephone and em
ail to help

troubleshoot basic equipm
ent

problem
s for m

em
ber libraries.

Hieu Tran, Jen
Schm

idt, Kate
Strattner

2020-2024
O

ngoing.
Continue to
investigate
im

proved
com

m
unication

m
ethods w

ith
m

em
ber

libraries.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
1.5

(At the request of a
m

em
ber library) and on a cost

recovery basis, provide direct

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Include cost
savings and
services
rendered in an

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
12 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 32 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 32 of 59



onsite hardw
are and softw

are
m

aintenance and support
services for those m

em
ber

libraries that elect M
CFLS as

their vendor.

annual report to
show

 value of
this service to
m

em
ber

libraries.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
1.5

Provide to m
em

ber libraries
annual report that includes
activities related to technology
and current equipm

ent
hardw

are lists and
recom

m
ended settings.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Annual report
issued to M

CFLS
Board and
m

em
ber

libraries each
June.

O
bjective

1.6
O

n a cost-recovery
basis provide a range of expert
“special project” autom

ation
and

consultation services to m
em

ber
libraries.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.6
(At the request of a

m
em

ber library) for new
building construction,
expansion, or large-scale
upgrades, provide consultation
services relating to Local-Area-
N

etw
ork

design and
configuration, equipm

ent
selection, connectivity to local
m

unicipal netw
ork resources,

and/or m
ovem

ent outside the
M

CFLS netw
ork.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Include cost
savings and
services
rendered in
annual report to
show

 value of
this service to
m

em
ber

libraries.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.6
(At the request of a

m
em

ber library), serve as the
library’s representative and
coordinator in the planning and
im

plem
entation of services

involving third party

Hieu Tran
Jen Schm

idt
2020-2024

O
ngoing.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
13 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 33 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 33 of 59



autom
ation vendors and

providers.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.6
(At the request of a

m
em

ber library), brokerand/or
im

plem
entlarge-scale local

autom
ation equipm

ent
purchases.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

O
ngoing

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.6
(At the request of a

m
em

ber library), im
plem

ent
equipm

ent w
arranty provisions

and provide necessary follow
-

up during the w
arranty period.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Ensure w
arranty

inform
ation is

up-to-date and
com

m
unicate

regularly w
ith

m
em

bers
regarding
pending
expiration.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.6
Establish standards for

equipm
ent and assist m

em
bers

w
ith technology life cycle

planning.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Identify and
share best
practices for
establishing a
library
technology plan.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

1.6
Provide leadership in trend

spotting and technology project
developm

ent by exploring and
vetting new

 technologies and
w

orking w
ith other system

s to
m

aintain up-to-date services
for m

em
bers.

Hieu Tran
Steve Heser

2020-2024
Take advantage
of any statew

ide
technology
projects and
purchases.
M

onthly
environm

ental
scans.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
14 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 34 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 34 of 59



O
bjectives and

Activities
–

G
oal 2.To expand and im

prove the integrated library system
 (ILS) functionality to m

eet the
needs of users and

staff.
G

oal 2:To expand and im
prove the integrated library system

 (ILS) functionality to m
eet the needs of users and staff.

U
se to

track goal progress
O

bjectives and Activities
Person(s)
Responsible
for Ensuring
Activities are
Com

pleted

Tim
eline

for
Com

pleting
the O

bjective
and Activities

Resources N
eeded

to Achieve
O

bjective

Cost
Evaluation
M

ethod
Progress
Tow

ard
Achieving
O

bjective

Com
m

ents

O
bjective

2.1
Provide support

assistance to m
em

ber libraries
regarding all aspects ofILS
functionality.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.1
As point of first-contact,

provide Help Desk services via
telephone, em

ail and/or an
online form

.

Kate Strattner
Jennifer
Schm

idt

2020-2024
Annual feedback
solicited from
LDAC from

 their
staff.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.1
Beyond first-contact,

provide staff expertise to
analyze softw

are issues and
open support tickets w

ith
Innovative Interfaces as
appropriate. Follow

-up as
necessary to ensure prom

pt
problem

 resolution.

Jennifer
Schm

idt
Kate Strattner

2020-2024
Consult w

ith
other libraries
on their
successful use of
the Innovative
support site.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.1
W

ith input from
 LDAC,

m
aintain softw

are tables,
options selections and codes
for the ILS. Identify and
im

plem
ent appropriate

adaptations and m
odifications

of the application softw
are to

fulfill m
em

ber library requests.

Jennifer
Schm

idt
2020-2024

Consultw
ith

other library
consortium

s
using Innovative
softw

are as
appropriate.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.1
Identify and im

plem
ent

strategies and shortcuts to
im

prove m
em

ber library

Jennifer
Schm

idt
2020-2024

Identify other
staff trainers in
order to share

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
15 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 35 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 35 of 59



know
ledge and efficiency w

ith
regards to the ILS.

and com
pare

practices w
ith.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.1
Train m

em
ber library staff

on im
portant ILS functionality

by offering regular in-person
and rem

ote training
opportunities as w

ellas an
option to schedule an
appointm

ent for one-on-one
assistance.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Annual feedback
solicited from
LDAC from

 their
staff.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.1
Evaluate existing training

content for any third-party
products that w

ork w
ith the ILS

and investigate the need for
any new

 or im
proved content.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
O

ngoing

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.1
M

ove aw
ay from

generalized training content
that covers a full w

ork
departm

ent tied to the ILS
(such as Circulation), and shift
to creating short, task-based
content of several areas w

ithin
each ILS w

ork area.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Annual feedback
solicited from
m

em
ber library

staff and LDAC.

O
bjective

2.2
Provide

adm
inistrative leadership and

support for softw
are upgrades

and enhancem
ents to the

integrated library system
 (ILS),

identify possible new
 products

for purchase and/or im
plem

ent
purchased products.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
16 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 36 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 36 of 59



Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.2
Relative to all standard

(non-fee-based) ILS upgrades
and enhancem

ents (i.e. “new
releases”), brief LDAC and
other key m

em
ber library staff

in advance of im
plem

enting
associated functionality
changes, facilitate LDAC input
and relevant decision-m

aking,
im

plem
ent the softw

are load of
the new

 release during library
closed hours, and provide all
necessary post-im

plem
entation

problem
 troubleshooting and

follow
-up training.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Inquire w

ith
other libraries
via the
Innovative
listserv and
other online
forum

s
featuring
libraries using
Innovative
products.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.2
Identify products offered by

Innovative Interfaces Inc.
and/or a third party vendor
thatm

ight add value to the ILS.
Research applicability to
m

em
ber library needs and

provide recom
m

endations for
purchase to the LDAC and
M

CFLS Board.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Inquire w

ith
other libraries
via the
Innovative
listserv and
other online
forum

s
featuring
libraries using
Innovative
products.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.2
Im

plem
ent enhancem

ents
from

 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.
for the staff and/or public side
of the ILS.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Inquire w

ith
other libraries
via the
Innovative
listserv and
other online
forum

s
featuring
libraries using
Innovative
products.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
17 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 37 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 37 of 59



Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.2
Im

plem
ent a new

 m
obile

catalog app for all m
em

ber
libraries and w

ork to introduce
im

provem
ents as our ILS is

upgraded. The m
obile catalog

app w
ill include a

m
ore user-

friendly
design and im

proved
functionality.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2021
Survey the
feedback of staff
and the public in
2020.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.2
U

pdate the
CountyCat

catalog w
eb page to support

responsive design principles
and offer enriched content that
show

cases m
em

ber library
collections. Assess the
effectiveness of Innovative
Interfaces catalog softw

are and
evaluate other third party
products

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2022
Survey the
feedback of staff
and the public in
2020.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.2
Stream

line staff and public
access to help inform

ation
betw

een CountyCat and the
M

CFLS w
eb page through w

eb
design im

provem
ents.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Survey the
feedback of staff
and the public in
2020.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.2
Perform

 a needs
assessm

ent of m
em

ber libraries
usage of the current ILS. U

nder
the direction of LDAC, perform
an ILS evaluation against
detailed functionality criteria
and m

ake a long term
 decision

on the best future ILS for
M

CFLS.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Solicit and
gather feedback
on this process
and the overall
project from
LDAC and the
M

CFLS Board

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
18 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 38 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 38 of 59



Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.2
Review

 and identify
circulation policies to help
identify areas w

here system
-

w
ide standardization m

ay be
possible to increase the ease of
use of county libraries and their
patrons.

Jen Schm
idt

Steve Heser
2020-2024

Survey the
feedback of staff
and the

public in
2021.

O
bjective 2.3:Expand know

ledge
of integrated library system

 (ILS)
and its capabilities. Contribute to
the Innovative Interfaces
enhancem

ent process and
participate in statew

ide
initiatives to im

prove patron
access to m

aterials.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
2.3

Participate in national,
regional, and/or local
Innovative U

ser Group
conferences, forum

s or
m

eetings. Engage in
com

m
unication w

ith other
W

isconsin library system
 staff

m
aking use of Innovative

Interfaces products.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
O

ngoing

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.3
Seek out successful projects

from
 other libraries that m

ake
use of Innovative’s API and/or
Sierra SQ

L w
ith third party

products in order to im
plem

ent
them

 to benefit one or m
ore

libraries in the system
.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Annual feedback
solicited from
LDAC.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

2.3
Be proactively involved in

statew
ide discussions

concerning the direction of the
ILS. Vocalize the needs of our

Jen Schm
idt

Steve Heser
2020-2024

Solicit feedback
from

 the System
Director, LDAC
and the M

CFLS
Board

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
19 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 39 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 39 of 59



system
 and/or contribute to

any activities relating to an ILS
taking place by the Departm

ent
ofPublic Instruction or as a
result of other statew

ide
initiatives.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
2.3

Review
 any ILS settings w

ith
m

em
ber librariesto identify

any areas that could potentially
be standardized system

-w
ide to

increase and/or ease the use of
online inform

ation resources by
the patrons of a m

em
ber

library.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
20 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 40 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 40 of 59



O
bjectives and

Activities
–

G
oal 3.: To facilitate and expand resource sharing am

ong all libraries inside and outside of M
ilw

aukee County.
G

oal 3:To facilitate and expand resource sharing am
ong all libraries inside and outside of M

ilw
aukee County.

U
se to

track goal progress
O

bjectivesand Activities
Person(s)
Responsible
for Ensuring
Activities are
Com

pleted

Tim
eline

for
Com

pleting
the O

bjective
and Activities

Resources N
eeded

to Achieve
O

bjective

Cost
Evaluation
M

ethod
Progress
Tow

ard
Achieving
O

bjective

Com
m

ents

O
bjective

3.1
O

fferaccess to the
collections of all M

CFLS m
em

ber
libraries to all M

ilw
aukee County

residents.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
3.1

M
aintain an online catalog

of holdings of all M
CFLS

m
em

ber public libraries w
ithin

an integrated and seam
less

online
catalog.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Increased use of
desktop and
m

obile catalog.
U

ser feedback
survey.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

3.1
Provide a 5-day per w

eek
delivery system

 to m
em

ber
public libraries to facilitate the
efficient m

ovem
ent of item

s to
end users.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

O
ngoing

evaluation.  U
se

feedback from
m

em
ber

libraries to
determ

ine
perform

ance.
O

bjective
3.2

For M
ilw

aukee
County residents, offer access to
m

aterials not ow
ned by M

CFLS
m

em
ber libraries.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

3.2
Fund the costs associated

w
ith the M

ilw
aukee Public

Library’s Interlibrary Loan
Services, facilitating
coordinated access to unique
m

aterials ow
ned by libraries

(public and non-public) outside
of M

CFLS, w
ithin the State

of
W

isconsin and beyond, if
necessary.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

O
ngoing. Budget

appropriately to
fund this service
annually.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
21 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 41 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 41 of 59



Activities to Achieve O
bjective

3.2
Fund an appropriate share

of costs associated w
ith

the
statew

ide delivery netw
ork

in
order to

facilitate delivery of
requested m

aterials for
M

ilw
aukee County public

library patrons from
 libraries

inside M
ilw

aukee County (non-
public) and other libraries
throughout the State of
W

isconsin (public and non-
public) .

Steve Heser
2020-2024

O
ngoing.

Budget
appropriately to
fund this service
annually.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

3.2
Encourage and provide

necessary inform
ation to

M
CFLS m

em
ber libraries

regarding the e-IN
FO

PASS
program

. e-IN
FO

PASS allow
s

patrons access to the holdings
of otherparticipating e-
IN

FO
PASS libraries throughout

the M
ilw

aukee m
etropolitan

area.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Evaluate success
of IN

FO
PASS

program
 by

consulting w
ith

academ
ic

institutions and
M

PL.

O
bjective

3.3
For

patrons/institutions not residing
in

M
ilw

aukee County and based
on DPI Resources for Libraries
and Lifelong Learning (RL&

LL)
Guidelines, facilitate appropriate
interloan access to the unique
holdings of M

CFLS m
em

ber
libraries.

Continue
contract w

ith
M

PL for ILL
resource
sharing.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
22 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 42 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 42 of 59



Activities to Achieve O
bjective

3.3
Per M

CFLS m
em

ber
agreem

ent, participate in the
lending of m

aterials to
patrons/institutions not
residing in M

ilw
aukee County

via Interlibrary Loan.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

M
onitor

statistics from
M

PL regarding
use of the
service.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

3.3
Fund an appropriate share

of costs associated w
ith the

statew
ide delivery netw

ork in
order to facilitate access to
M

CFLS m
em

ber holdings by
users outside of M

ilw
aukee

County.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

O
ngoing.

Evaluate success
of program

 in
consultation
w

ith M
PL ILL

team
 and m

ake
changes w

hen
necessary.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

3.3
Participate, in m

eetings,
conferences, and initiatives
related to

interloan issues.

Steve Heser
Jen Schm

idt
2020-2024

Full
participation in
opportunities
related to
interloan issues.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
23 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 43 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 43 of 59



O
bjectives and

Activities
–

G
oal 4.To enhance the M

CFLS w
ebsite as w

ell as host m
em

ber library w
ebsites.

G
oal 4:To enhance the M

CFLS w
ebsite as w

ell as host m
em

ber library w
ebsites.

U
se to

track goal progress
O

bjectives and Activities
Person(s)
Responsible
for Ensuring
Activities are
Com

pleted

Tim
eline

for
Com

pleting
the O

bjective
and Activities

ResourcesN
eeded

to Achieve
O

bjective

Cost
Evaluation
M

ethod
Progress
Tow

ard
Achieving
O

bjective

Com
m

ents

O
bjective

4.1
Redesign and

m
aintain a w

eb presence for
M

CFLS.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

4.1
Replace the current w

eb
server hardw

are w
ith new

equipm
ent utilizing current

standards.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Com
pleted, but

required
softw

are yet to
be installed.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

4.1
Im

plem
ent an upgrade

to
the M

CFLS w
ebsite

using
W

ordPress tem
plates and

plugins.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Com

pletion of
project by

end
of2020.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

4.1
Sem

i-annually
review

 the
content of the M

CFLS w
ebsite

im
plem

enting necessary
im

provem
ents to the site in

order to enhance the delivery
of up-to-date inform

ation to
M

CFLS, m
em

ber libraries, and
the w

ider public.

Jen Schm
idt

Kate Strattner
2020-2024

Evaluation
perform

ed on
an ongoing basis
and integrated
into w

ork
processes.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

4.1
Regularly m

aintain and
update the M

CFLS Libguides
site, a source for Adm

inistrative
and CountyCat procedural
inform

ation.

Kate Strattner
Jen Schm

idt
2020-2024

Evaluation
perform

ed on
an ongoing basis
and integrated
into w

ork
processes.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
24 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 44 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 44 of 59



O
bjective

4.2
Host and assist

m
em

ber library w
ebsites

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

4.2
(At the request of a

m
em

ber library), host m
em

ber
library w

ebsites.

Hieu Tran
Jen Schm

idt
2020-2024

O
ngoing.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

4.2
Provide reasonable

assistance to those m
em

ber
libraries w

hose w
ebsites are

hosted on a M
CFLS server, e.g.

uploading files, troubleshooting
problem

s.

Hieu Tran
Jen Schm

idt
2020-2024

O
ngoing.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

4.2
Facilitate integration of

m
em

ber library
w

ebsites
hosted by M

CFLS w
ith the

Expression W
eb client.

Hieu Tran
Jen Schm

idt
2020-2024

O
ngoing.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
25 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 45 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 45 of 59



O
bjectives and

Activities
–

G
oal 5.To facilitate M

CFLS and m
em

ber library participation in the W
isconsin Public Library

Consortium
’s

(W
PLC) digital dow

nload m
edia buying pool.

G
oal 5:To facilitate M

CFLS and m
em

ber library participation in the W
isconsin Public Library Consortium

’s (W
PLC) digital

dow
nload m

edia buying pool.
U

se to
track goal progress

O
bjectives and

Activities
Person(s)
Responsible
for Ensuring
Activities are
Com

pleted

Tim
eline

for
Com

pleting
the O

bjective
and Activities

Resources N
eeded

to Achieve
O

bjective

Cost
Evaluation
M

ethod
Progress
Tow

ard
Achieving
O

bjective

Com
m

ents

O
bjective 5.1

Keep
current w

ith
all em

erging technologies related
to technology and digital
dow

nloads.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
5.1

Participate in statew
ide

inform
ation sharing related to

digital dow
nloads, including

attending W
isconsin Public

Library
Consortium

 (W
PLC)

Board m
eetings. Share new

developm
ents w

ith the M
CFLS

Board and LDAC.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

Participation in
all W

PLC board
m

eetings and
regular
com

m
unication

w
ith LDAC and

M
CFLS Board.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

5.1
U

tilize
blogs, trade

publications, and other
resources to stay current w

ith
technology related to digital
dow

nloads.

Steve Heser
Jen Schm

idt
2020-2024

M
aintain

professional
developm

ent
and
subscriptions to
trade m

agazines
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
5.1

Facilitate system
participation in the Digital
Library Steering Com

m
ittee and

other W
PLC subcom

m
ittees to

ensure M
CFLS m

em
ber libraries

have a voice in any future
direction taken by the W

PLC.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

M
aintain M

CFLS
presence on all
com

m
ittees and

participate in
any funding
discussions.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
26 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 46 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 46 of 59



O
bjective 5.2

Train M
CFLS

m
em

ber library staff in serving
patrons w

ho use digital
dow

nload services.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
5.2

O
ffer training to M

CFLS
m

em
ber library staff on how

 to
use

digital dow
nload services.

Provide training using m
ethods

and m
aterials in accordance

w
ith the M

CFLS strategic plan.

Jen Schm
idt

Kate Strattner
2020-2024

Creation of
content and
delivery to staff
utilizing short,
focused
m

aterials.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

5.2
Provide online resources

dedicated to helping patrons
troubleshoot and/or learn
m

ore about digital dow
nload

services.

Jen Schm
idt

Kate Strattner
2020-2024

Creation sim
ple,

easily utilized
content, posted
online and

m
ade

available to
patrons.

O
bjective

5.3
Insure adequate

funding for the digital dow
nload

m
edia buying pool.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

5.3
Coordinate w

ith M
CFLS

m
em

ber libraries to insure
adequate funding is
m

aintained.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

W
ork w

ith LDAC
to m

aintain or
increase funding
as appropriate.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
27 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 47 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 47 of 59



O
bjectives and Activities

–
G

oal 6.
To help purchase and/or broker purchases of online databases.

G
oal 6:To help purchase and/or broker purchases of online databases.

U
se to

track goal progress
O

bjectives and Activities
Person(s)
Responsible
for Ensuring
Activities are
Com

pleted

Tim
eline

for
Com

pleting
the O

bjective
and Activities

Resources N
eeded

to Achieve
O

bjective

Cost
Evaluation
M

ethod
Progress
Tow

ard
Achieving
O

bjective

Com
m

ents

O
bjective

6.1
Purchase and/or

broker purchases of online
content delivery products for
M

CFLS libraries.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
6.1

Purchase and/or broker
purchases of appropriate online
content delivery products for
m

em
ber libraries

Steve Heser
Jen Schm

idt
2020-2024

M
aintain

current
subscriptions;
evaluate
perform

ance
and identify new
opportunities.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

6.1
Seek input and

recom
m

endations from
 the

LDAC regarding product
purchases.

Steve
Heser

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Perform

 annual
review

s of
hoopla and
other system
sponsored
subscriptions.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

6.1
Integrate products w

ithin
the library catalog as
appropriate.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
O

ngoing.

O
bjective 6.2

Ensure adequate
funding for purchase of online
content delivery products.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

6.2
Adjust agreem

ents and
system

 budget to allow
 for

additional funding.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

M
aintain

existing budget
lines; increase
funding each
year.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
28 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 48 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 48 of 59



O
bjectives and Activities

–
G

oal 7.
To assist m

em
ber library staff in becom

ing m
ore technologically know

ledgeable and proficient.
G

oal7:
To assist m

em
ber library staff in becom

ing m
ore technologically know

ledgeable and proficient.
U

se to
track goal progress

O
bjectives and Activities

Person(s)
Responsible
for Ensuring
Activities are
Com

pleted

Tim
eline

for
Com

pleting
the O

bjective
and Activities

Resources N
eeded

to Achieve
O

bjective

Cost
Evaluation
M

ethod
Progress
Tow

ard
Achieving
O

bjective

Com
m

ents

O
bjective 7.1

Provide
technology-related consultation
and education to m

em
ber library

staff at all levels.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
7.1

W
ith input from

 LDAC,
M

CFLS staff w
ill annually

provide a
set of staff training

opportunities.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Production of
annual calendar
of staff training
opportunities.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

7.1
M

CFLS w
ill regularly

com
m

unicate w
ith SEW

I CE
staff in order to relay topic
ideas for future

technology
training and to identify
potential speakers for M

CFLS-
specific com

m
ittee m

eetings.

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
Participation
and regular
com

m
unication

w
ith SEW

I CE
staff.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

7.1
M

CFLS w
ill stay current

w
ith accessm

ethods and issues
relating to various inform

ation
resources, and create training
content for use by m

em
ber

libraries

Jen Schm
idt

2020-2024
U

se of library
field and
technology
resources to
stay abreast of
current m

odels
and trends.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

7.1
M

CFLS w
ill stay abreast of

technology trends relevant to
m

em
ber libraries on the local,

state and national levels.

Jen Schm
idt

Steve Heser
2020-2024

U
se of library

field and
technology
resources to
stay abreast of
current m

odels
and trends.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
29 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 49 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 49 of 59



O
bjectives and Activities

–
G

oal 8.To m
aintain and enhance M

CFLS technology staff professional com
petencies.

G
oal 8:To m

aintain and enhance M
CFLS technology staff professional com

petencies.
U

se to
track

goal progress
O

bjectives and Activities
Person(s)
Responsible
for Ensuring
Activities are
Com

pleted

Tim
eline

for
Com

pleting
the O

bjective
and Activities

Resources N
eeded

to Achieve
O

bjective

Cost
Evaluation
M

ethod
Progress
Tow

ard
Achieving
O

bjective

Com
m

ents

O
bjective

8.1
Identify

appropriate training and
m

em
bership opportunities for

M
CFLS technology staff.
Activities to Achieve O

bjective
8.1

Allocate funds for M
CFLS

staff conference/training needs
as a separate line item

 w
ithin

the annual M
CFLS

budget.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

$6,500/yr
M

aintain
training budget
line at current
support.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

8.1
Encourage and fund M

CFLS
staff m

em
berships in

professional organizations as a
vehicle for peer exchange and
netw

orking.

Steve
Heser

2020-2024
$5,000/yr

M
aintain

m
em

berships in
professional
organizations.
Support
conference
attendance.

O
bjective 8.2

Analyze system
staffing levels to support the
Technology Plan

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

8.2
Review

 and alter job
descriptions w

here necessary.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

Review
 job

descriptions by
2024.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
30 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 50 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 50 of 59



O
bjectives and Activities

–
G

oal 9.
To organize and m

aintain all appropriate autom
ation product licensing, technicaldocum

entation and
assist m

em
bers in technology life cycle planning.

G
oal 9:To organize and m

aintain all appropriate autom
ation product licensing, technical docum

entation and assist
m

em
bers in technology life cycle planning.

U
se to

track goal progress

O
bjectives and Activities

Person(s)
Responsible
for Ensuring
Activities are
Com

pleted

Tim
eline

for
Com

pleting
the O

bjective
and Activities

Resources N
eeded

to Achieve
O

bjective

Cost
Evaluation
M

ethod
Progress
Tow

ard
Achieving
O

bjective

Com
m

ents

O
bjective

9.1
M

aintain all central
site licenses and m

aintenance
agreem

ents and provide m
em

ber
libraries w

ith all appropriate
docum

entation for M
CFLS

controlled netw
ork equipm

ent.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

9.1
Ensure that all appropriate

central and
rem

ote site
autom

ation product licenses
and m

aintenance agreem
ents

are current and up-to-date and
m

aintain copies in a secure
fireproof location.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

M
aintenance of

product licenses
and
agreem

ents.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

9.1
As specified in

M
CFLS ILS,

Resource Sharing and
Technology agreem

ent, provide
m

em
bers annually an updated

inventory list of M
CFLS

controlled netw
ork equipm

ent,
located at the participating
library locations.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Annually share
an updated
inventory list.

O
bjective 9.2

Establish standards
related to technology equipm

ent
and life cycle planning.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
31 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 51 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 51 of 59



Activities to Achieve O
bjective

9.2
Develop and share

equipm
ent replacem

ent
schedules and lists of
recom

m
ended hardw

are,
brow

ser, PC and
printer

settings.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Create and
m

aintain lists on
an annual basis.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

9.2
Create an annual report

that includes system
 activities

related to technology.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Create an
annual report to
share w

ith
m

em
ber

libraries.
O

bjective 9.3
Provide leadership

in trend spotting and technology
project developm

ent.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

9.3
Identify and m

anage large
scale project opportunities for
scale shared technology
projects.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

Take advantage
of state-w

ide
opportunities as
appropriate.

Activities to Achieve O
bjective

9.3
Vet and test potential new

technologies and perform
ing

regular environm
ental scans for

m
em

ber libraries.

Hieu Tran
2020-2024

O
ngoing

evaluation.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
32 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 52 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 52 of 59



O
bjectives and Activities

–
G

oal 10.
To insure adequate funding for the Technology Plan.

G
oal 10:To insure adequate funding for the Technology Plan.

U
se to

track goal progress
O

bjectives and Activities
Person(s)
Responsible
for Ensuring
Activities are
Com

pleted

Tim
eline

for
Com

pleting
the
O

bjective
and
Activities

Resources
N

eeded to
Achieve
O

bjective

Cost
Evaluation
M

ethod
Progress
Tow

ard
Achieving
O

bjective

Com
m

ents

O
bjective

10.1
Budget for

this plan w
ithin

annual
operating budget as w

ell as
capital outlays for future
needs.

Activities to Achieve
O

bjective
10.1

Fund all
ongoing com

ponents of
this plan w

ith appropriate
budgetary line item

s.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

M
aintain

support for
Technology
plan

goals.

Activities to Achieve
O

bjective
10.1

As
appropriate, build up
reserve funds over
m

ultiple years for
anticipated capital
replacem

ent and/or
upgrade expenditures.

Steve Heser
2020-2024

Identify and
pursue reserve
fund
opportunities
w

here
appropriate.

ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
33 of 33

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 53 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 53 of 59



Marketing and Advocacy Committee
Guidelines

A. Mission Statement.

Provide public awareness, voice and visibility for the Milwaukee County Federated Library system, its
member libraries, and shared services and resources to broadly communicate the value and
opportunities public libraries provide to our communities.

B. Purpose and Scope.

The Marketing and Advocacy Committee (MAC) shall oversee all marketing and advocacy activities on
behalf of the Milwaukee County Federated Library System (MCFLS).  These activities include, but are not
limited to, data collection, planning, asset development, evaluation and training.  In addition, the MAC
will assist in providing direction to any consultants or contract workers hired by MCFLS for the express
purpose of fulfilling these activities. The work of the MAC will be informed by the MCFLS strategic plan,
member libraries’ needs, and topics and trends related to public library service more generally.

The MAC will not be responsible for hiring or managing the day-to-day activities of these consultants or
contract workers. The MCFLS Director will assume primary responsibility for handling these obligations.

C. Representation.

The MAC shall be comprised of the following members:

a. Up to two representatives from the Library Directors Advisory Council (LDAC).  These members
will serve as liaison between the MAC and LDAC committees.

b. One representative from the resource library (Milwaukee Public Library) to provide expertise
and synergy with MPL marketing and advocacy activities.

c. MCFLS staff will be represented by the MCFLS Director, or their designee.
d. Up to two representatives from the Youth Services, Adult and Reference Services or Circulation

services committees to provide feedback on MAC activities from the staff perspective.
e. Up to four representatives with local marketing and sales expertise to be available on an as-

needed basis to advise the committee and provide connections to resources within the
Milwaukee area.

D. Relationship of the MAC to the MCFLS Board.

The MAC will report directly to the MCFLS Director and advise the MCFLS Board on marketing and
advocacy activities.  An annual report of the previous year’s activities will be presented to the MCFLS
Board each year.

ATT G - Marketing and Advocacy Committee
1 of 2

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 54 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 54 of 59



E. Meetings.

Meetings will be held initially on an ad hoc, flexible schedule or until a more regular schedule is agreed
upon by members in coordination with the MCFLS Board. A system staff member shall record minutes.

F. Officers, Duties and Appointments.

Officers

An appointed Chair shall preside over all meetings of the MAC.  They will develop and prepare agendas
in consultation with the MCFLS Director.  The Chair will also make reports and recommendations to the
MCFLS Board upon request. The Chair will make one annual report to the MCFLS Board each year.

Appointment of Chair

Each MAC Chair will serve a term of at least one calendar year in that role.  The Chair can serve multiple
terms if approved by a simple majority of the committee.  At the end of each year, the current Chair will
solicit volunteers to act as incoming Chair for the next calendar year.  The appointment of an incoming
chair will be approved by a simple majority.  If necessary, the current Chair will serve until a suitable
replacement can be found.

G. Resources

Staff resources

The MAC will advise MCFLS staff in selecting a consultant to assist in data collection and
marketing/advocacy plan development.  The consultant will be hired by MCFLS.  The MAC will assist the
system in providing direction to this consultant.

Additionally, the system has put aside funding to hire a contract worker to assist in system marketing
and advocacy activities.  The MAC will assist the system in providing direction to this contract worker.

Budget resources

The system has a current annual budget line devoted to marketing and advocacy activities.  The current
amount allocated is $10,000 per year. This budget line is separate from the budget line addressing staff
resources.

H. Evaluation.

Members will evaluate the viability of the MAC committee after three years, on or shortly after
December 31st, 2022.  A report will be submitted to the MCFLS Board with a recommendation to either
continue activities or sunset the MAC committee on a specific date.

ATT G - Marketing and Advocacy Committee
2 of 2

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 55 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 55 of 59



RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION

Steve Heser has been a dedicated and productive employee of the Milwaukee County
Federated Library System (MCFLS) for fifteen (15) years; and

WHEREAS, Steve Heser provided leadership to MCFLS as Library Systems Administrator
for thirteen (13) years and the last two (2) years as System Director; and

WHEREAS, Steve Heser has overseen significant improvements to the user experience for
library users since 2004, including integration of many products such as online fine
payment, online registration, the CountyCat mobile app and Encore discovery layer; and

WHEREAS, Steve Heser led a successful migration from the Innovative Millennium
platform to the Innovative Sierra platform in 2014; and

WHEREAS, Steve Heser has represented MCFLS and dealt with library issues on various
State of Wisconsin Committees, such as SRLAAW, WPLC and PLSR working groups,
cultivating positive working relationships at the state level; and

WHEREAS, Steve Heser laid the groundwork and participated in the creation of the 2020-
2024 MCFLS Strategic Plan; and

WHEREAS, Steve Heser has been a key negotiator as MCFLS Director, in the development
of the current  ILS, Resource Sharing & Technology Agreement, Resource Agreement and
other agreements for the operation of MCFLS and on behalf of member libraries; and

WHEREAS, Steve Heser brought a unique and insightful perspective to MCFLS, having had
prior experience as a librarian with the Milwaukee Area Technical College (MATC); and

WHEREAS, Steve Heser has sought increased collaboration among MCFLS member
libraries and has given the highest priority to the needs of the library user; now therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED, that Members of the Milwaukee County Federated Library System Board
of Trustees do herewith congratulate Steve Heser on the occasion of his 15th anniversary,
commend his many contributions to high quality library service; and thank him for his
efforts to improve cooperation among member libraries and the Milwaukee County
Federated Library System; and

FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be presented to Steve
Heser and that a copy be printed as an attachment to the agenda of the regular meeting of
the MCFLS Board of trustees held December 16th, 2019.

ATT H - Heser Resolution
1 of 1

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 56 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 56 of 59



ATT I - Letter from Cudahy Family Library Board
1 of 1

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 57 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 57 of 59



ATT J - 2020 System Plan Approval and First Aid Payment
1 of 1

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 58 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 58 of 59



December 16th, 2019

November/December 2019 Director’s Report

Summary of activities

1. Attended WPLC Roundtable meeting all day on October 25th to discuss long range plans for
digital media and OverDrive.

2. Completed DPI Technology and Resource Sharing Plan with MCFLS staff assistance for De-
cember 5th LDAC meeting and submission to MCFLS Board on December 16th.

3. Participated in “Effective Messaging” Webinar on October 29th.
4. Attended Fines Focus Groups meeting with MPL staff on November 1st. Focus groups for

the Fines Study met the first week of November and the group met again on November 12th to 
discuss the results. A further focus group will be organized soon.

5. Organized dates and locations for the LAWDS Training for module 1 that took place at four lo-
cations on November 6th, 7th, 20th and 21st. 30 staff members attended and a follow up
meeting on December 13th was held to discuss next steps.

6. Created a privacy policy for member libraries and shared the document with the LDAC on
November 7th. The policy is being reviewed by our legal advisor for accuracy.

7. Led discussion and participated in fee/organizational card workgroup; report out to LDAC in
January regarding access/fee cards.

8. Attended annual system directors meeting in Mauston, WI on November 14th.
9. Participated in PLSR implementation webinar on November 19th.
10. Made changes to the Marketing and Advocacy committee guidelines using feedback received

at the LDAC meeting.
11. Attended multiple meetings with Jen and Communico staff in advance of the CountyCat
      Mobile app rollout on December 16th.  Nearly 10,500 downloads have been recorded as of 12/23.                    

Upcoming Activities

1. Complete 2019 annual report preparation process for member libraries by mid-January.
2. Continue process of putting the Marketing and Advocacy subcommittee together.
3. Complete work on fleshing out the timeline for the 2020-2024 strategic plan, focusing on

near term goals in 2020.

ATT K - November-December Director's report
1 of 1

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 59 of 59

MCFLS Board - January 2019
Page 59 of 59


	Agenda - MCFLS Board - January 6th 2019
	ATT A - MCFLS Board Minutes 2019-10
	EXH
	fr919


	ATT B - LDAC Summaries
	ATT B - LDAC Summary 2019-11
	ATT B - LDAC Summary 2019-12

	ATT C - October-November Financial Reports
	ATT C - October 2019 Financial Report
	ATT C - November 2019 Financial Report

	ATT D - Proposed 2020 Board Meeting Dates
	ATT E - MPL Lease 2020-2021
	ATT F - 2020-2024 MCFLS Technology Plan
	ATT G - Marketing and Advocacy Committee
	ATT H - Heser Resolution
	ATT I - Letter from Cudahy Family Library Board
	ATT J - 2020 System Plan Approval and First Aid Payment
	ATT K - November-December Director's report

